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Renewable energy - ESGGoals:

In line with the current requirements of ESG(Environment Social and
Governance) I the Company is in the process of increasing the Solar
Plant Capacity from 500 KW to 800 KW at a cost of Rs.210 Lakhs and will
be commissioned in the current Financial Year and this will result in
further reduction of power costs. This is in addition to the existing wind
energy assets.

NET DEBTFree Status:

On net basis the company is Debt free.

Exports Foot Print:

VTM has Export foot prints at eight Countries.

VTM's Exports stand at Rs 41.78 Crores and Imports are only
Rs5.28 Crores, in the recently ended financial year 2022-23. Imports
figure, mainly consists of Advance technology Auto Drawing machine
procured at a cost of Rs 4.92 Crores, rest of the imports of Rs 0.36
Crores comprise of spares parts and consumables.

r:-lU
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventy Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Members of the
Company will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar on Monday,
the 3rd of July, 2023 at 12,05 PM to transact the following business.

AGENDA

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Hem No.1 - Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31 st March, 2023 and
the Profit & Loss Statement for the year ended on that date and the reports of the Directors and the
Auditors thereon.

Item No.2 - To declare a dividend on equity shares.

Item No.3 - Re-appointment ofSmt.Uma Karman, Director

To appoint a Director in the place of Dr.(Smt) Uma Kannan, who retires by rotation and being eligible
offers herself for re-appointment.

AS SPECIAL BlJSINESS :

Item No.4 - To consider and ifthought fit to pass with or without modificationts), the
following resolution as a Ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
and the Regulation 23 of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations applicable to Listed Companies and subject to
such other approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions of any authorities as may be necessary,
consent ofthe Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter
into contracts or agreements for transactions of sale, purchase or supply of goods or materials with M/
s.Thiagarajar Mills (P) Ltd., upto an estimated transaction value of not exceeding Rupees One Hundred
Crore on behalf of the Company, for each of the Five (5) financial years commencing from l " April,

2024.
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Item No.5 - To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as special resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 161and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) Mr.T.N. Ramanathan, (DIN
02561794), who was appointed as a Director(Independent) of the companyon and from April 01, 2019,
and whose office expires on 01.04.2024,and in respect of whom the company has received a notice in
writing proposing his candidature for the office of the Director be and is hereby re-appointed as

Director of the Company".

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule
IV and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including
any statutory modifications or re-enactment( s) thereof for the time being in force, Mr.T.N.Ramanathan,
(DIN 02561794), be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a
further (second) term of5 years commencing from 01.04.2024 and he is not liable to retire by rotation".

Item No.6 - Ratification of Cost Auditor Remuneration:

To consider and ifthought tit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED THAT subject to provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions thereon, the fees of
Rs.50,000/- payable to the Cost Auditor Mr.A.N. Raman for auditing the cost records and furnishing
of Report thereon for the Financial Year 2023-24 as recommended by the Audit Committee and

approved by the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby ratified.

NOTES:

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 23rd

June 2023 to 3rd July, 2023 (both days inclusive) for annual closing, dividend purpose.

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out

details relating to Resolutions at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy/Proxies to
attend and vote instead of himself. Such a Proxy/ Proxies need not be a member of the Company.

[]



The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office
of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement
of the meeting. A Proxy Form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies,
societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

3. Electronic copy of the Notice of Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating
the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to
all the members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s)
for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same.
For members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the Notice, indicating
the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in
the permitted mode.

4. Members may also note that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting will also be available on
the Company's website www.ytmill.com for their download. The physical copies of the aforesaid
documents will also be available at the Company's Registered Office in Sulakarai, Virudhunagar
for inspection during normal business hours on working days. Even after registering for e­
communication, members are entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon
making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any communication, the shareholders
may also send requests to the Company's investor email id:complianceofficer@vtmill.GD_tl1_

I. IMPORTANT NOTES

1. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed
from 23rd June, 2023 to 3rd July, 2023 (both days inclusive) for annual closing, dividend purpose.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out
details relating to Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy/Proxies to
attend and vote instead of himself. Such a Proxy/Proxies need not be a member of the Company.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office
of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement
of the meeting. A Proxy Form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies,
societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

4. Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank particulars registered
against their respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend.

it;J, li\RK""WMM,JHMiI$_""
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The Company or its Registrars cannot act on any request received directly from the Members
holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such
changes are to be advised only to the Depository Participant of the Members. Members holding
shares in physical form and desirous of either registering bank particulars or changing bank
particulars already registered against their respective folios for payment of dividend are requested

to write to the Company.

5. Members are requested to note that the dividends not encashed or remaining unclaimed for a
period of seven years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account shall be transferred
u/s. 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
established under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, pursuant to the provisions of
Section 124 of the Act and IEPF Rules, all shares on which dividend has not been paid or
claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred to IEPF Authority as notified

by the MCA.

6. The Members/Claimants whose shares, unclaimed dividend have been transferred to IEPF may
claim the shares or apply for refund by making an application to IEPF Authority in Form IEPF­
S (available on www.iepf.gov.in) along with requisite fee as decided by it from time to time. The
Member/Claimant can file only one consolidated claim in a financial year as per the IEPF Rules.

7. Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants for the earlier financial years are
requested to make their claim on or before the due date/s for such transfer. The members can
make a claim with the Company in respect of the dividends of years that are lying in the Unpaid

Dividend Account of the Company.

8. Members are requested to note that pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
SEBI Listing Regulations and the IEPF Rules, all such shares in respect of which dividends
have not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more are also required to be
transferred to IEPF. The Company is taking steps for sending individual notices to the concerned
shareholders and for publishing of a public notice to shareholders under the IEPF Rules in this

regard.

9. The Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN), e-mail id, bank details,besides the Mobile number by every participant
in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore, requested to
submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical.fhrm can submit their PAN and other above said

details to the Company.
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10. Details required under Regulation 36 ofSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual
General Meeting, forms integral part of the notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite
declarations for their appointment/re-appointment.

11. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for the year 2022-23 is being sent to all the members
whose email IDs are registered with the CompanylDepository Participant(s) for communication
purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same.

12. Electronic copy of the Notice of the 76tl1Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia
indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is
being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository
Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy
of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the
Notice of the 76tl1Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the process and
manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in the permitted
mode.

13. Members may also note that the Notice of the 76th Annual General Meeting and the Annual
Report for the year 2022-23 will also be available on the Company's website www.vtmill.com
for their download.

14. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company's Registered
Office in Sulakarai, Virudhunagar for inspection during normal business hours on working days.
Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive such communication
in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any communication,
the shareholders may also send requests to the Company's investor email id:
complianceofficerrglvtmill.com.

15. Voting through electronic means

I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide
members' facility to exercise their right to vote at the 76thAnnual General Meeting (AGM) by
electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided by
KFin Technologies Ltd.

, ... .JOI.",.lPQR';!£
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Instructions and other information relating to e-voting are as under:

A) In case a Member receives an email from KFin Technologies Ltd [for Members whose email
Ids are registered with the CompanylDepository Participant(s)]:

i) Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https-//evoting.kfintech.comin the address
bar and click on "Enter". The Home screenwill be displayed then click on shareholders
icon in the homepage.

ii) Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password mentioned overleaf). Your Folio
NO.IDPID- Client ID will be your User ID. However, if you are already registered with
KFin Technologies Ltd for E-voting, you can use your existing User ID and password
for casting your vote.

iii) After entering these details appropriately, click on "LOGIN".

iv) You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandatorily
change your password. The new password shall comprise minimum characters with at
least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric (0-9) and a special
character (@#$.etc). The system will prompt you to change your password and update
your contact details like mobile number, email ID. etc., on first login.Youmay also enter
a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve password and that you take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

v) You need to login again with the new credentials.

vi) On successful login, the systemwill prompt you to select the E-VotingEventNumber for
VTM Limited.

vii) On the voting page enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes)
as on the cut-off Date under each of the heading of the resolution and cast your vote by
choosing the "FOR! AGAINST" option or alternatively, you may partially enter any
number in "FOR" andpartially in "AGAINST"but the totalnumber in "FOR!AGAINST"
taken together should not exceed your total shareholding as mentioned overleaf. You
may also choose the option "ABSTAIN" and the shares held will not be counted under
either head. Option "FOR" implies assent to the resolution and "AGAINST" implies
dissent to the resotu [ion.

viii) Membersholdingmultiplefolios/demataccountsshallchoosethevotingprocessseparately
for each of the folios/demat accounts.
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ix) Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice separately. In case you do not desire to
cast your vote on any specific item, it will be treated as abstained.

x) You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on "Submit".

xi) A confirmation box will be displayed Click "OK" to confirm else "CANCEL" to modify.
Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting period,
Members can login any number of times till they have voted on the Resolution(s).

xii) Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are also
required to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution /
Authority Letter, etc., together with attested specimen signature(s) ofthe duly authorized
representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e-mail ID:rsachida@gmail.com. They may also
upload the same in the E-voting module in their login. The scanned image of the above
mentioned documents should be in the naming format "Corporate Name_EVENT NO."

B) In case a Member receives physical copy of the Annual General Meeting Notice by post [for
members whose email Ids are not registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s)] can
also vote using e-voting method.

1. User ID and initial password are provided overleaf.

ll. Please follow all steps from Sr.No.(i) to (xii) as mentioned in (A) above, to cast your
vote.

2. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change
it subsequently. Further, the Members who have cast their vote electronically shall not be allowed
to vote again at the Meeting.

3. In case of any query pertaining to E-voting, please visit Help & FAQ's section available at KFin
Technologies Ltd's website https://evoting.kfintech.com.

4. The facility for voting through electronic means (Ballot) shall be made available at the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) and the members attending AGM who have not cast their vote by
remote E-voting shall be able to vote at the AGM through "Ballot".

5. The members who have cast their vote by remote E-voting may also attend AGM, but shall not
be entitled to cast their vote again.

$AM;;; • aA =_:_= M ,44, Zi4ASWA;;uat$klt41\iUi,.M"l.;;;;;g;;UJi2;:Uu. ..AQ;;4iMllUi,;;;;;;;%i49WiiU4itMiOA,menm
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6. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr.S.Ramalingam, Practising Company Secretary
(Membership No.61773) as a Scrutinizer to scrutinize the E-voting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

7. The voting rights of theMembers shallbe inproportionto the paid-upvalue of their shares in the
equity capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 23rd June, 2023.

8. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial
owners maintained by the depositories at the close of business hours on 28th June 2023 shall be
entitled to avail the facility of remote E-votinglballot.

The e-voting period starts on 28thJune, 2023 (9:00 am) and ends on 2nd July, 2023 (6:00 pm).

9. Any person who becomes member of the Company after despatch of the Notice of the meeting
and holding shares as on the cut-off date may obtain the User Id and password in the manner
as mentioned below:

a. If the mobile number of the Member is registered against Folio No.! DPID - Client ID,
the member may send SMS:

MYEPWD<space> E-Voting Event Number+Folio No. or DPID - Client ID to
+91-9212993399Example forNSDL: MYEPWD<SPACE>INI2345612345678

Example for CDSL: MYEPWD<SPACE>I402345612345678

Example for Physical:MYEPWD<SPACE>XXXX1234567890

b. If e-mail address ormobile number of the Member is registered against FolioNo.!DPID­
Client ID, then on the home page ofhttps:l/evoting.kfintech.comllogin.aspx, themember
may click "Forgot Password" and enter Folio No. or DPID - Client ID and PAN to
generate a password.

c. Member may call KFintech's Toll free number 1800-309-4001

d. Member may send an e-mail requesttoevoting@kfintech.com

10. However, if you are already registered with Kfintech for E-voting, you can use your existing
User 10 and password L. casting your vote.

11. The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion
of AGM shall unblock the votes cast by remote E-voting and Ballot, in the presence of at least
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two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and will make a Consolidated
Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, forthwith to the Chairman of the
meeting.

12. The Results on resolutions shall be declared at or after the Annual General Meeting of the
Company and the resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the Annual General Meeting date
subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour of the Resolutions.

13. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report(s) will be available on website of the
Company (www.vtmill.com)andonKFintechwebsite(https:llevoting.kfintech.com. The results
shall simultaneously be communicated to Stock Exchanges.

14. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be
open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours
(9.00 am to 5.00 pm) on all working days except Sundays, up to and including the date of the
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Note on TDS:

In accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as amended by and read with the
provisions of the Finance Act, 2020, with effect from 1stApril2020, dividend declared and paid by the
Company is taxable in the hands of its members and the Company is required to deduct tax at source
(TDS) from dividend paid to the members at the applicable rates.

For Resident Members:

1. No TDS shall be deducted in the case of resident individual members, if the amount of such
dividend in aggregate paid or likely to be paid during the financial year does not exceed Rs.
5,000.

2. Where, the Permanent Account Number (PAN) of resident individual member is available
and valid,

1. TDS shall be deducted at the rate of 10% on the amount of dividend payable.

11. In cases where the resident individual member provides the duly signed Form 15G or
Form 15H (as applicable) and provided that the eligibility conditions are being met, no
TDS shall be deducted. The format of Form 15G and Form 15H are enclosed as Enclosure
1 and 2 respectively.
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3. Where the PAN is either not available or is invalid, TDS shall be deducted at a rate which is
higher of the prescribed TDS rates or 20%.

For Non-Resident Members:

1. TDS shall be deducted/withheld at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and, health and
education cess) on the amount of dividend payable.

2. Non-resident member may have an option to be governed by the provisions of the Double Tax
Avoidance Treaty (DTAA) between India and the country of tax residence of the member, if
such DTAA provisions are more beneficial to them. To avail the DTAA benefits, the non­
resident member should furnish the following documents".

1. Self-attestedcopy of PermanentAccountNumber (PAN) if allotted to you, by the Indian
IncomeTaxAuthorities. If PANis not allotted to you, please provide your email address,
contact number and address in the country of residence;

11. Self-attested Tax Residency Certificate (TRC) issued by the competent authority or tax
authority of the country of your residency, evidencing and certifying your tax residency
status in the country of residency during the Financial Year2022-23;

lll. Completed and duly signed Form 10F in the format prescribed;

IV. Self-declaration in the format: certifying that:

a. You are and continue to remain a tax resident of the country of your residency
during the FinancialYear2022-23;

b. Youare eligibleto claimthebeneficialDTAAratefor thepurposesof taxwithholding
on dividend declared by the Company;

c. You have no reason to believe that your claim for the benefits of the DTAA is
impaired in any manner;

d. You are the ultimate beneficial owner of your shareholding in the Company and
dividend receivable from the Company; and

e. You do not have a taxable presence or a permanent establishment in India during
the Financial Year2022-23.
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The Company is not obligated to apply the beneficial DTAA rates at the time of tax deduction!
withholding on dividend amounts. Application of beneficial DTAA Rate shall depend upon the
completeness and satisfactoryreview by the Company,of the documents submittedbyNon-Resident
member.

I. Access to Depositories e-voting system in case of individual Members holding shares in
demat mode.

Type of Member Login Method

IndividualMembers holding securities in demat modewith NSDL

A) Existing Internet-based Demat Account Statement ("IDeAS") facility Users:

i) Visit the e-services website of NSDL https:lleservices.nsdl.com either on a personal
computer or on a mobile.

ii) On the e-serviceshome page click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login" which
is available under 'IDeAS' section. Thereafter enter the existing user id and password.

iii) After successful authentication, Members will be able to see e-voting services under
'Value Added Services'.

Please click on "Access to e-voting" under e-voting services, after which the e-voting page will be
displayed.

iv) Click on Company name i.e. 'VTM Limited' or e-voting service provider (,ESP') i.e.
KFinTech.

v) Members will be re-directed to KFinTech's website for casting their vote during the
remote e-votingperiod and voting during theAGM.

B) Users not registered under IDeAS e-Services:

i) Visit https:lleservices.nsdl.comfor registering.

ii) Select "Register Online for IDeAS Portal" or click at https:lleservices.nsdl.com.

C) By visiting the e-votingwebsite ofNSDL:

i) Visit the e-voting website ofNSDL https:llwww.evoting.nsdl.com
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ii) Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is
availableunder

'ShareholderlMember' section. A new screen will open.

iii) Members will have to enter their User ID (i.e. the sixteen digit demat account number
held with NSDL), passwordlOTP and a VerificationCode as shown on the screen.

iv) After successful authentication, Members will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein they can see e-voting page.

v) Click on company name i.e. 'VTM Limted' or ESP name i.e. KFinTech after which the
Member will be redirected to ESP website for casting their vote during the remote
e-votingperiod.

II. EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIALBUSINESS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 102OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Theprovisions of Section 188of the CompaniesAct 2013 read with the Rule 15Companies (Meetings
of Board and its powers) Rules 2014 govern the related party transactions and require a company to
obtain prior approval of the shareholders by way of resolution for entering into contract or agreement
for transactions with related parties for such sale, purchase or supply of goods or material and other
items of transactions exceeding the limits specified therein. In the case of transactions with
M/s.ThiagarajarMills Private Limited, Kappalur,Madurai, the transaction for a year may exceed the
limits specified under Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.
Accordingly, the resolution under Item No.5 is placed before the members of the company for their
approval.

In the light of the provisions of the CompaniesAct 2013 and the notification issued as stated above,
the Board of Directors of the company has approved proposed transactions along with annual limits
that your company may enter into with related party for the maximum value of transactions as
mentioned in the resolutions for each financial year.

All prescribed disclosures as required pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its
powers) Rules, 2014, are given here-in-below for the perusal ofmembers:-

1. Name of the Related Party: Thiagarajar Mills (P) Ltd.

2. Name of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel who is related, if any:-
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Sri. T Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director.

Dr. (Smt) Uma Kannan, Director.

Sri. K. Thiagarajan, Director

Sri. M.Anbukani, Director.

3. Nature of Relationship: Companies under Common Control.

4. Nature, Duration, Material Terms, Monetary Value and Particulars of

Contract-

On arm's length basis and in tune with market parameters. Monetary Value as mentioned in the
resolution set out in the Notice.

5. Any advance paid or received for the contract or arrangement, if any: NIL

6. Manner of determining the pricing and other commercial terms both included as part of contract
and not considered as part of the contract. All proposed transactions would be carried out as
part of the business requirements of the Company and are ensured to be on arm's length basis.
Further, the Company is also subject to transfer pricing norms prevalent in the country.

7. Any other information relevant or important for the Board to take a decision on the proposed
transactions: NIL

The Board has approved this item in the Board Meeting held on 03.05.2023, and recommends this
ordinary Resolution set out in the Notice for approval by the members of the company as an ordinary
Resolution.

Except Sri.TKannan,Chairman & Managing Director, Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan,Sri.K.Thiagarajan and
Sri.M.Anbukani, Directors of the Company, no other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives are in any way concerned or interested in the resolution.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the
Company vide its resolution dated 03.05.2023, re-appointed Mr.TN. Ramanathan (DIN 02561794), as
Director (Non-Executive Independent) on Board of the Company. In terms of the provisions of
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Section 161(1) of the CompaniesAct, 2013, Mr.T.N.Ramanathanholds office up to 01.04.2029.

Brief Resume and other details ofMr.T.N.Ramanathan:

Mr.T.N.Ramanathan, son of Mr.T.B.Nagasamy, aged 70 years is a post graduate in Commerce
(M.COM) fromMadurai University.He has also completedM.B.A inMarketing. Going further in his
accademic acccomplishments he has to his credit bachelors degree in law and a topper from Madras
University. He is a retired lAS Officer having served in various Government Posts in and out of
Tamilnadu.

He has given his renewed consent to continue as a Director of the Company, along with a certificate
stating that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in the Company in terms of
Section 164of the CompaniesAct, 2013.Further, he has submittedthe declarationas requiredpursuant
to the Section 149(7) of the Act stating that he continue to meet the criteria of independence as
provided in sub section (6) of Section 149of the CompaniesAct, 2013. Mr.T.N.Ramanathan has also
declared that he is not debarred from holding the office of the director by virtue of any SEBI order or
any other such authority.Mr.T.N.Ramanathandoes not hold any equity shares in the Company.

The Board considers that his experience and expertisewould continue to be of immense benefit to the
Company and that it is desirable to continue to avail the services of Mr.T.N.Ramanathan as an
Independent Director of the Company.

The Board of Directors therefore recommend the special Resolution as set out in Item No.5 of the
Notice for the approval of the shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. T.N.Ramanathan, (DIN
02561794), fulfils the conditions for re-appointment as an Independent Director for a term of five
years commencing from 01.04.2024 and in terms of Section 149(13),he is not liable for retirement by
rotation.

Except Mr.T.N.Ramanathan, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
and their relatives is concerned or interested, in the resolution set out at Item No.5.

The Board, at itsmeetingheld on 3rdMay,2023 appointedMr.A.N.Raman,PracticingCostAccountant,
havingMembershipNo.9167,asCostAuditorof theCompany,in termsof Section 148of theCompanies
Act, 2013 and fixed a sum of Rs. 50,0001- as remuneration payable to him, for the financial year
2023-24.

---- -- - ------- -- -- -



The remuneration, as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board, is required
to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company, as per the requirements of Section 148(3) of the
Companies read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or
interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.6.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the ordinary resolution, as set out in Item No.6, for ratification by
the shareholders of the Company.

By order of the Board

Kappalur, Madurai
May3,2023

T.Kannan (DIN - 00040674)
Chairman & Managing Director
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DIRECTORS'REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2023

To the Members of VTM Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 76th Annual Report along with the Audited statement
of accounts for the year ended 31 st March, 2023.

Pursuant to the notification issued by the Ministry cf Corporate Affairs dated 16th February, 2015
relating to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standar::ls) Rules, 2015 the Company has adopted "Ind
AS" with effect from 1st April, 2017. Accordingly, the Financial Statements for the year 2022-2023
have been prepared in compliance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Operating & Financial Performance - Profits, Dividends & Retention

Rs. in Lakhs.

2022-2023 2021-2022

Turnover 20872 19374

Profit before Depreciation
(after interest) 2212 2726

Less: Depreciation 980 920
----------- ------------

Profit after Depreciation 1232 1806

Less: Provision for Taxation:
Current Year 331 459

Current tax adjusted to
earlier years - -

Deferred Tax (-) 13 (-) 142
-------- --------

318 317
------ -----

Profit after Tax 914 1489

Add: Amount brought forward 2084 1330

Available for appropriation 2998 2819
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Appropriation:-

Transfer to General Reserve - 500

Dividend @ Re.0.90 per share 362

Dividend @ Re.0.60 per share 241
------ 362 ------ 241

Transfer from Other
Comprehensive Income 5 6

Retained profit carried forward ------- -------

to the following year 2641 2084
------- -------

During the year under review the Company was able to register turnover of Rs.20,872.42 lakhs for the
FY2023 as against Rs.19,374.50 for FY2022, an increase of7.73% over previous financial year. The
Company registered an export turnover ofRs.4,218.84Iakhs representing 20.21 % of the total turnover
in spite of the constraints faced in the international markets.

The Company partnered with retailers in USA for marketing its high end Home Textile products.The
sales turnover has grown from strength to strength over the last 7 months, reaching Rs.195.00 Lakhs
for the Year Ended 31 st March 2023. This was achieved by development of new product and design

of Home Textiles.

The Company made a Profit of Rs.2,212 lakhs before depreciation against Rs.2,726 lakhs, though the
turnover has increased. The Company achieved a Profit after Tax of Rs.914 Lakhs for the Year
Ended 3]'1 March 2023.

Despite the challenging factors, the year's working result is encouraging and your Directors hope to

obtain better working results in the ensuing year.

Your Directors are conscious of the recessionary impact created by the geo-political tension and are
accordingly taking counter measures to ensure that your Company operates at peak performance and

look forward to the current year with hope and optimism.

Modernisation & Upgradation

The Company has commenced installation of Solar power plant of 300KW capacity at a cost of

Rs.210 Lakhs.
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As a continuation of its periodic Modernisation policy during the year under review, your Company has

spent a little over Rs.690 Lakhs in modernising its plart & equipments.

This includes an amount ofRs.SO.SO lakhs for the Garment unit including a Garment washing facility,
compressor and additional stitching machines, for promoting exports in the international Home Textiles

market.

The Company has also invested Rs.489 Lakhs in a Lew Staubli Auto Drawing machine. This will

directly improve the efficiency of the looms and bring down the down-time substantially.

The Company has invested in a new Forbes Boiler of 2.ST capacity at a cost ofRs.90.00 Lakhs. The
raw material for the boiler is briquettes and hence the dependence on coal is eliminated.

To meet the demand for sampling and new product development, the company has invested Rs.36.00
Lakhs in Single end Sizing and Warping machines to develop samples in a quick lead time.

Dividend

Considering the profits for the year and as recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board of
Directors is pleased to recommend a dividend ofRe.0.70 per share i.e.70% on Equity Shares ofRe.11
_each. If this is approved at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, dividend will be deposited with
the bank within the time prescribed and dividend will be paid to those who are Members of the
Company as on Book closure specified in this regard. The Book Closure period being 23rd June, 2023
to 3rd July, 2023 (Both days inclusive) in respect of shares held electronically, dividend will be paid on

the basis of beneficial ownership as per details furnished by the depositories.

Extract ofAnnual Return

As per the requirements of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 the extract of annual return in the prescribed Form

MGT-9 has been given as a link in Company's website www.vtmill.com.

Associate Company/Holding or Subsidiary Company

The Company does not have any Associate Company as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and

has not entered into any joint venture agreement during the year under review.

Change in the Nature of Business

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.
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Segmentwise performance

The Company is primarily a manufacturer of textile products and is managed organizationally as a
single unit. Accordingly, the Company is a single business segment company. Geographical (secondary)

segment has been identified as domestic and export sa.es as detailed below:

Particulars Amount (Rs. lakhs) % of Turnover

Export Sales 4219 20.21

Domestic Sales 16653 79.79

Industry Structure &Developments, Opportunities &Threats, Outlook, Risks&Concerns

The Indian economy continues to be resilient despite geo-political challenges. Due to rise in prices
owing to an inflationary trend, the operating margins of the Company are under pressure. However,
the domestic and export markets are fairly well positioned compared to other developing economies.

The power situation continues to be comfortable.

The Company is taking steps to develop and implement risk management policies. Ithas substantially

cut credit facilities to customers and insist on shorter credit cycles.

On net basis, the Company is Debt free.

Further, in the domestic market there is a risk of competition from a large number of textile units.

A below normal monsoon has been forecast for the year 2023-24 which may affect the raw material

prices.

Your Directors look forward to the current year with hope and optimism, they expect the reform
process in the economy will be accelerated by the Government which in tum will prove positive for

trade & industry.

Board ofDirectors:

The Board is headed by Sri.T.Kannan, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company. During the

year under review, there were changes at the Board level as under:

The Board consists of 10 Directors with one Chairman and Managing Director, five Non-Executive
Independent Directors, three Non-Executive Directors and One Woman Non-Executive Director.
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As on 31st March, 2023, the Board comprised of 10 Directors out of which 1 Director is Executive,
Chairman & Managing Director, 4 Directors are Non - Executive including one Woman Director,S
Directors are Non-Executive Independent. The composition of the Board is in conformity with the
requirements of Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, and SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015. All
Directors are competent and experienced personalities in their respective fields.

Number of Board Meetings:

During the year under review, Four Board Meetings were held on 25.04.2022,01.08.2022,28.10.2022
& 11.02.2023. The maximum interval between any two consecutive Board Meetings did not exceed
120 days.

The details of number and dates of meetings held by the Board and its Committees. attendance of
Directors and remuneration paid to them is given separately in the attached Corporate Governance
Report.

The sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors are within the limits prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules thereon.

Retirement of Directors byRotation:

Dr. (Smt.) Uma Kannan Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible has offered herself for reappointment as a Director of the Company. She is
proposed to be re-appointed as a Director of the Company. The details of the proposed re-appointment
of Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan are forming part of the Corporate Governance report.

Re-Appointment ofNon Executive Independent director:

Mr. T.N. Ramanathan, (DIN 02561 794), who was appointed as a Director(Independent) of the company
on and from April 01, 2019, and whose office expires on 01.04.2024,and in respect of whom the
company has received a notice in writing proposing his candidature for the office of the Director is to
be re-appointed as Non Executive Director (Independent) of the Company", with the approval of the
members in the ensuing Annual general Meeting of the company.

Non-Executive Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Independent Directors have confirmed and declared that they are not disqualified
to act as a Non-Executive Independent Director in compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is also of the opinion that the Non-Executive Independent
Directors fulfill all the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 making them eligible to act as
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Non-Executive Independent Directors. All the Non-Executive Independent Directors have convened

a meeting on 11.02.2023.

To comply with the amended regulations as provided in Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, the Board reviewed the evaluation process by applying the provisions of Section 149 and
Schedule IV to the Companies Act and the regulations as provided under the SEBI Regulations in

respect of the Independent Directors of the Company with the following criteria:

• the performance of the Independent Directors.

• fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified under the Companies Act, 2013 and

regulations under SEBI Regulations.

• The process of evaluation stating the objectives, criteria for evaluation.

• periodic review of the evaluation process.

The Independent Directors who attended the meeting of the Board did not participate in the discussion
in respect of the evaluation of the Independent Director. There was sufficient quorum excluding the

Independent Directors during the time of evaluation.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 so as to qualify themselves
to act as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
relevant rules made thereunder. Further, they have also declared that they are not aware of any
circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact
their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external
influence. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company's

Code of Business Conduct & Ethics.

Code ofConduct

All Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company have confirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct applicable to the Directors and employees of the Company. The
Code of Conduct is available on the Company's website www.vtmill.com. All Directors have confirmed
compliance with provisions of Section] 64 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Director's Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the provisions

-- - ---- --------------
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of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions as
referred in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in the preparation
of the annual accounts for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 and state that:

1. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

ll. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that period;

iii. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

IV. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concem basis;

v. the Directors have laid down intemal financial controls to be followed by the Company
and that such intemal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively and
the Company has adopted proper policies and procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient
conducting of the business:

a) The management designed and implemented policies with respect to adherence to
accounting standards as a general requirement applied by a Company in preparing
and presenting financial statements.

b) The management evolved a sound system for regular evaluation of the nature and
extent ofthe risks to which the Company is exposed and to control risk appropriately.

c) The Board ensured the effective financial controls, including the maintenance of
proper accounting records and the Company is not unnecessarily exposed to
avoidable financial risks. They also contribute to the safeguarding of assets, including
the prevention and detection of fraud. The financial information used within the
business and for publication is reliable.

VI. the Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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KeyManagerial Personnel

The following persons have been appointed as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company in compliance

with the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) Sri. T. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director

b) Sri. AN. Paramasivam, Chief Financial Officer

c) Sri. S. Paramasivam, Company Secretary

Corporate Governance

The Company has in place the SEBI guidelines pertaining to Corporate Governance. During the year
under consideration, the Company had Ten members Board of Directors consisting of one Chairman
and Managing Director, five Non-Executive Independent Directors, four Non-Executive Directors of

which one is a Woman Director.

The Corporate Governance Report giving the details as required under Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given
separately as Annexure I and forms part of this Report of the Directors. The Corporate Governance
Certificate for the year ended on March 31, 2023 issued by M/s.CNGSN & Associates LLP, Auditors
of the Company, is also attached as part of Annexure I and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.

The Company has formulated Insider Trading Code and Insider Trading Fair Disclosure Code in terms
of Regulation 9 read with Schedule B and Regulation 8 read with Schedule A of SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 respectively and provided in the company's website at
www.vtrnill.com.Mr.S. Paramasivam, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer responsible for
compliance with the Insider Trading procedures. As there was no insider trading in the securities of the
company, the company has not reported any Insider Trading details to the Stock Exchange.

Sri T. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company has given his certificate under
Regulation 17(8) read with part D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 regarding the annual financial statements for the year ended on 31st
March, 2023 to the Board of Directors which is attached as Annexure IX. The Chairman has given his
certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of the above said Regulations in
compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, which is

attached as Annexure VIII and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Directors and satisfies the provisions of Section
177(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Reconstituted Audit Committee (during the year) comprised
of Mr. M. Anbukani as Chairman, Mr.Ganesh Ananthakrishnan and Mr.L.Sevugan as Members, and
all are Independent Directors.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. The details of all related party transactions
are placed periodically before the Audit Committee. During the year there were no instances where
the Board had not accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee. The Company has in place
a vigil mechanism, details of which are available on the Company's website www.vtmill.com

The Audit Committee has also been delegated the responsibility for monitoring and reviewing risk
management assessment and minimization procedures, implementing and monitoring the risk management
plan and identifying, reviewing and mitigating all elements of risks which the Company may be exposed
to.

The Audit Committee is empowered with monitoring the appointment of Key Managerial Personnel.

The details of terms of reference of the Audit Committee, number and dates of meetings held, attendance
of the Directors and remuneration paid to them are given separately in the attached Corporate
Govemance Report.

Whistle Blower Policy /VigiI Mechanism

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Listing
Regulations, the Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to enable Directors
and employees of the Company to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud
or violation of Code of Conduct, that could adversely impact the Company's operations, business
performance and / or reputation, in a secure and confidential manner. The said policy provides adequate
safeguards against victimization of Directors/employees and direct access to Chairman of Audit
Committee, in exceptional cases. The Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is available on the
website of the Company under the web-link https://www.vtmill.com/investorlVigil-Mechanism-Whistle­
Blower-Policy.pdf Your Company affirms that no personnel of the Company has been denied access
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and no complaint has been received during the year under
review.
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Evaluation of the performance of the Board, Committees and Individual Directors:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual
evaluation of its own performance, the individual Directors (including the Chairman) as well as an

evaluation of the working of all Board Committees.

The Board reviewed and evaluated its own performance from the following angles

• Company Performance

• Strategy and Implementation

• Risk Management

• Corporate ethics

• Performance of the Individual Directors

• Performance of the Committees viz., Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The Board also evaluated the performance of the above referred Committees and concluded that the
Committees continued to operate effectively, with full participation from all members and executive

management of the Company.

The Board upon evaluation considered that the Board is well balanced in terms of diversity of experience.
The Board noted that all Directors have understood the opportunities and risks to the Company's
strategy, and are supportive of the direction articulated by the management team towards improvement.
Corporate responsibility, ethics and compliance are taken seriously and there is a good balance between

the core values of the Company and the interests of shareholders.

The Directors also expressed their satisfaction in all the above areas considering the Company's
performance in all fronts viz., New Product Development, Sales and Marketing, International business,

Employee relations and compliance with statutory requirements.

All the results of evaluation have been communicated to the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Related Party Transactions

During the year 2018-19, the company has entered into contracts or arrangements for a period of five
years from 01.04.2019 to 31.03.2024 with such number of related parties with the approval by the
Board of Directors and the members ofthe company at be Annual General Meeting wherever necessary

in respect of the following:
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1. Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials
2. Sellingor otherwisedisposingof, or buying, property of any kind
3. Leasing of property of any kind
4. Availing or rendering of any services
5. Obligations

As the current limit with Thiagarajar Mills Pvt Ltd, for sale, purchase or supply of any good or
materials,expireson 31stMarch 2024, the approval of members is soughtnow for another term of five
years for an amount ofRs. 100 crores from 01.04.2024.

The details in respect of the material contracts or arrangements or transactions on arm's length basis
carried on with the related parties have been furnished in Annexure V.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Company established CSR Committee on 24th April 2014, The CSR Committee was charged
with the responsibilitiesto dischargefunctionsrelated to CSRactivitiesto be carriedoutasper Schedule
VII of CompaniesAct 2013 and be amendmentsmade thereon.As per notification issued by MCA,
there is no necessity to form CS~ Committee if the prescribed CSR expenditure does not exceed
Rs.50 Lakhs in the year, the Board of Directors can discharge the CSR committee functions and
activities. Therefore CSR Committee got disbanded and future review of CSR obligations, including
progress monitoring, co-ordinationwith implementing agency, etc., came under the purview of Board
of Directors on and from 01.04.2(21.

The CSR Policy, which was approved by the Board, is available on the Company's website.

The Companyhas decided to spend CSR funds for ongoingprojects that can be completedwithin two
years. As per the latest CSR amendment Rules, the ongoing project has to be undertaken only by the
RegisteredTrust or Society or a Section 8 Companyhaving CertificateUnder Section l2A and 80Gof
Income Tax Act 1961. The KKTCMCT, a registered Trust had been registered with MCA having
RegnNo :CSR00003093.

The Company has fully spent Rs.25.09 Lakhs, being the average profits for past three years, for the
ongoing projects through the implementing agency, Kalaithanthai Karumuttu Thiagaraja Chettiar
Memorial Charitable Trust (KKTCMCT).

The CSR policy is available on the Company's website www.vtmill.com
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Prevention of Sexual Harassment

In compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee with three
employees and a NGO representative and Smt. Uma Kannan, Director of the Company is the Adviser
to the Committee. The Board also has approved the prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy and all
employees especially women employees were made aware of the Policy and the manner in which
complaints could be lodged. The Committee has submitted its Annual Report and the same has been

approved by the Board.

The following is reported pursuant to Section 22 of tl;e Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

1. No. of Complaints of sexual harassment received NIL

2. No. of Complaints disposed off during the year NIL

3. No. of cases pending for more than ninety days NIL

4. No. of awareness programme conducted 1

5. Nature of action taken by the employer Not Applicable

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

ANomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted on April 24, 2014 and, as on 31st March,
2023, after the reconstitution of the Committee in this year, now Sri Ganesh Ananthakrishnan is the
Chairman, an Independent Director and Mr. T. Karman, and Mr. M.Anbukani, are Members of the
Committee. The constitution satisfies the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as well
as the SEBI Regulations. The Company Secretary is .he Secretary of this Committee.

During the financial year ended March 31,2023, the Committee was convened on 25.04.2022 and on

28.10.2022 to transact business.

The Company's Remuneration Policy is available on the Company's website www.vtmil1.com and

annexed as forming part of this report as Annexure X.

The details of terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, are given separately

in the attached Corporate Governance Report.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee now consist of Sri T.N.Ramanathan as Chairman and
Sri T. Kannan and Sri K.Vethachalam as Members. The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the
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Committee as per the Regulation 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, to have three Directors
as Members of the Committee with one Independent Director Member. The Committee met once
during the year on 11.02.2023.

The Committee has delegated the responsibility for share transfers and other routine share maintenance
work to the Company Secretary and to Mls.KFin Technologies Limited the Registrars and Share
Transfer Agents of the Company. All requests for dematerialisation and rematerialisation of shares,
transfer or transmission of shares and other share maintenance matters are completed within 30 days
of receipt of valid and complete documents. The Committee approved all activities through Circular
Resolutions and all those Circular Resolutions were placed and discussed at the Board meetings. The
Committee also reports to the Board on matters relating to the shareholding pattern, shareholding of
major shareholders, insider trading compliances, movement of share prices, redressal of complaints,
Reports on SCORES of SEBI and all compliances under the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing
agreement with Stock Exchanges.

The shares of the Company are Lsted on the Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company's shares are
compulsorily traded in the dematerialized form. The ISIN number allotted is INE222FOI029. The
details of shareholding pattem, distribution of shareholding and share prices are mentioned separately
in the attached Corporate Governance Report.

Transfer to Investor Education & protection fund

Transfer of shares

The company's Stakeholder relationship committee has already transmitted 798100 equity shares of
the company into DEMAT account of the IEPF Authority held with NSDL (DP ID Clent ID IN300708-
10656671) in terms of Provisions of Section 124(6) of the companies Act 2013, and the related Rules.
During the year the Company has transmitted 33500 shares to the IEPF. The complete list of such
shareholders, whose shares were due for transfer to IEPF in current year is also placed in the website
of company.

Statutory Auditors

Auditors

In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereon, Mis CNGSN & Associates
LLP, Chartered Accountants, Chennai (Finn Regn. No. 004915S/S200036) have been appointed as
Auditors of the Company by the rr.embers at their meeting held on 23rd June, 2017 and the Auditors
have been appointed for a period 0= five years from the conclusion of 7otil Annual General Meeting till
the conclusion of the 75th Annual General Meeting.
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Accordingly, their tenure of their appointment was extended at the 76th AGM. Being eligible, the said
firm was re-appointed for a further term of five years, till the conclusion of the 80th AGM.

The Auditors have already submitted certification u/s. 141 of the Companies Act 2013 and Peer
Review Certificate in respect of their appointment as Auditors of the Company.

AUDITORS

Auditors'Report

The Notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory. There are
no qualifications or reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers given by Statutory Auditors' of the
Company and therefore do not call for any comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Auditors' Report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report.

Secretarial Audit Report and Certificates

A Secretarial Audit was conducted during the year oy the Secretarial Auditor, Mr.S.Ramalingam,
Practicing Company Secretary, in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The Secretarial Auditor's Report along with Annual Secretarial Compliance Report (as
required under the amended SEBI Regulations) has been obtained ,and is attached as Annexure II and
forms a part of this Report of the Directors. There are no qualifications or observations or remarks

made by the Secretarial Auditor in his Report.

Cost Auditor and Cost Records

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company was required to maintain cost records. Accordingly, the
Company has duly made and maintained the Cost Records as mandated by the Central Government.

The Board of Directors had approved the appointment of Shri A.N.Raman, Cost Accountant as the
Cost Auditor of the Company to audit the Compaq's Cost Records for the year 2023-24, at a
remuneration of Rs.50,0001- plus applicable taxes anc out-of-pocket expenses.

The remuneration of the cost auditor is required to be ratified by the members in accordance with the
provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the matter is being placed before the Members for ratification at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.
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Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as such, there are no outstanding
deposits in terms of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

The company does not have any deposit which is not in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013.

Loans, guarantees and investments

The Company has not granted any inter-corporate loan, given guarantee or provided security for
availing loan by any other company. However the company has invested its funds in such number of
companies and in such number of shares and securities in other Body Corporates as referred to in
Notes No. 06 and 10 of the Balance Sheet.

In compliance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, loans to employees bear interest at

applicable rates.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The prescribed particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo required under Section 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure IV and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.

Particulars of Employees

The prescribed particulars of Employees required under Section 134(3)( q) read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as
Annexure VI and forms a part o::~this Report of the Directors. There are no employees drawing
remuneration more than Rs.l02 Lakhs per annum or Rs.S,50,0001- per month.

Statement on Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Directors have devised systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial
Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. The Company is in compliance
with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
approved by the Central Governrr ent under Section IIS( 10) of the Act.

Annexures forming a part ofthis Report of the Directors

The Annexures referred to in this Report and other information which are required to be disclosed are

annexed herewith and forms a part of this Report of the Directors:
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I. Corporate Governance Report along with Certificate on Corporate Governance by the Auditor

of the Company.

II. Secretarial Audit Report

III. Extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 - Web link.

IV. Particulars on Conservation of Energy, Technolcgy Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings

and Outgo.

V. Form AOC-2 for material contracts with Related Parties.

VI. Ratio of remuneration and Particulars of Emplcyees.

VII. Annual Report on CSR spending.

VIII. Chairman &Managing Director's Certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule
V to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on compliance

of Code of Conduct.

IX. Certificate by Chairman and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer under Regulation
17(8), of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on

Financial Statements.

X. Remuneration Policy.

Appreciation

Your Directors record their sincere appreciation of the dedication and commitment of all employees in
achieving and sustaining excellence in all areas of the business. Your Directors thank the Shareholders,
Customers, Suppliers and Bankers and all other Stakeholders for their continuous support to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Kappalur, Madurai.
May 03, 2023.

SdJ-
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Management Discussion & Analysis:

Financial Performance:

The company's Sales Turnover has increased by Rs.l,498 Lakhs from Rs.19,374 Lakhs to Rs.20,872
Lakhs registering an increase of7. 73%. Due to new machinery additions, the depreciation has increased
to Rs.980 Lakhs. The Profit after depreciation has decreased by Rs.574 Lakhs from Rs.l,806 Lakhs
to Rs.1,232 Lakhs. The Profit after tax has decreased from Rs.l,489 Lakhs to Rs.914 Lakhs as set
out in the Directors' Report.

Particulars Unit of
Measurement 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 Variation in %

Current Ratio Inmultiple 10.66 15.40 44%

Inventory Turnover Ratio In Days 63 65 3%

Trade receivables Turnover Ratio In Days 31 26 -16%

Net Profit Ratio In % 7.68% 4.38% -43%

Debt-Equity Ratio In multiple 0.03 0.02 -33%

Debt Service Coverage Ratio In multiple 6.13 6.75 10%

Return on Equity Ratio In % 7.80% 6% -23%

Net Capital Turnover Ratio In Days 84 78 -7%

Return on Capital Employed In % 5.47% 3.60% -34%

Industry Structure and Developments:

Industry structure and developments has been elaborately stated in the Director's Report.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy:

Internal Control Systems has been elaborately stated in the Director's Report.

Human Resources:

The Company has a recruitment and training policy to meet its HR needs. The Company's performance
on the Industrial Relations front continues to be quite satisfactory.

Cautionary Statement:

Certain statements in the "Management Discussion and Analysis Report" may be forward looking and
are as required by applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results, which
could be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of the future performance and outlook­
the ever present risk factors.
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Annexure I: Corporate Governance Report 2022-23

THE COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

The corporate governance framework of the company is led by the following practices:

Corporate Governance is about meeting our goals responsibly and transparently, while being accountable
to our stakeholders. Our company's governance considers the long-term interest of every stakeholder
as we operate with a commitment to integrity, fairness, equity, transparency, accountability and
commitment to values. The framework lays down procedures and mechanisms for enhancing leadership
for smooth administration and productive collaboration among employees, value chain, community,

investors and the Government.

The Company in addition to compliance with regulatory requirements, also endeavours to ensure high

standards of ethical conduct in the Organisation.

1. A Report on Corporate Governance is given below end Auditors certificate in compliance with the
provisions of Corporate Governance is enclosed separately.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1. Composition and Category of Directors:

The Board of Directors as on ydMay 2023 consists often Directors of which there are One Executive
Director, Four Non-Executive Directors and Five Independent Directors and thus it is in compliance
with SEBI Regulations. The details ofthe compositior, of the Board of Directors are as follows:

Name ofthe Director Category Particulars

Sri T.Kannan Chairman and Managing Director Executive Director

Dr. (Smt.) Uma Kannan Director Non-Executive Woman Director

Sri K.Thiagarajan Director Non-Executive Director

Sri RM.Somasundaram Director Non-Executive Director

Sri T.N.Ramanathan Director Independent Director

Sri Ganesh Ananthakrishnan Director Independent Director

Sri M.Anbukani Director Independent Director

Sri L.Sevugan Director Independent Director

Sri C.R.Venkatesh Director Independent Director

Sri K.Vethachalam Director Non-Executive Director
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During the financial year, Director Sri.A.Mariappan passed away (18.9.2022) after a long, and creditable
stint as a Director in the company, Sri.M.Anbukani was inducted as an Independent Director from
28.10.2022.

2.2. Details of the Directors

The current composition of the Board of Directors complies with the provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the provisions of Companies Act,
2013.

In the present Board, Sri T. Kannan, Chairman & Managing Director, Dr. (Smt.) Uma Kannan and
Sri. K. Thiagarajan are related to each other.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member on more than 10 Committees as per the requirements
of Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.
Necessary disclosures have been ::nade by the Directors in this regard.

The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review the performance of the Company, and also meets
as and when to transact any special business that may arise.

Dr. (Smt.) Uma Kannan Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible has offered herself for reappointment as a Director of the Company. She is
proposed to be re-appointed as a Director of the Company. The personal information about Dr.(Smt.)
Uma Kannan is given as below:

Dr. (Smt.) Uma Kannan was appointed as Woman Director of the Company on 25th March, 2015.
She is Doctorate in Sociology from Madurai Kamaraj University. She is the Director ofMis. Thiagarajar
Mills Pvt Limited, Mis. Thiagarajar Telekom Solutions Private Limited, Colour Yams Private Limited,
and Partner in Madurai Malli Fragrances LLP. As such, she possesses knowledge and experience in
Corporate affairs.

Dr. (Smt.) Uma Kannan does not aold any equity shares in the Company.

All Directors have certified that the disqualifications mentioned under sections 164, 167 and 169 of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to them. Independent Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Code for Independent Directors mentioned in Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013 and that they are not disqualified to act as an Independent Directors in compliance with the
provisions of section 149 of the Ccmpanies Act, 2013.
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IndependentDirectors' Criteria:

The Board of Directors confirms that the Independent Directors fulfill the criteria in respect of their
independency as referred under the provisions of Section 149 and Schedule IV to the Companies Act,
2013 and under the regulations referred in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations as amended from time to

time.

Familiarization Programme: At the time of induction, the Company familiarizes the Independent Directors
with regard to their role & responsibilities, industry outlook, business strategy, Company's operations
etc. Thereafter, the Independent Directors are provided with necessary documents, reports, internal
policies and updates to familiarise them with the Company's business, policies, procedures and practices

at various Meetings held during the year.

2.3. CodeofConduct

The Code of Conduct laid down by the company, which has been adopted by the Board of Directors,
is applicable to the Directors and all employees of the Company. This Code of Conduct emphasizes
the Company's commitment to compliance with the h.ghest standards of legal and ethical behaviour.
The Code of Conduct is available on the website of .he Company www.vtmill.com under heading
'Investor Information'. All Directors and senior management have adhered to the Code of Conduct of
the Company during the year and have signed declarations of compliance to the Code of Conduct. The
declaration signed by Chairman and Managing Director, is given separately in the Annual Report.

2.4. List of skills/expertiseor competenceofBoard ofDirectors:

The Board comprises of Members who have varied skills, experience and knowledge to effectively
govern and direct the organisation. The skills and attributes of the Board can be broadly categorised as

follows:

• Governance skills (skills directly relevant to performing the Board's varied functions,
including key functions);

• Industry skills (Skills relevant to the Textile industry);

• Financial skills (Skills relevant to Finance, Treasury and Banking Management);

• Accounting skills (Skills relevant to Accounting Functions);

• Administrative skills (Skills relevant toAdrninistrative functions).
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Details oflisted entities where the Directors ofthe Company are Directors and category of Directorship:

Directors Listed Entities Category of Directorship

Sri.T.Kannan TVS Motor Company Limited Independent Director

Sri.T.Kannan Sundaram Brake Linings Limited Independent Director

2.5. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As on March 31, 2023 following shares of the Company were held by Directors:

Name Designation No. of shares

Sri.T. Kannan CMD 585600

Sri.K. Thiagarajan Director 153600

Sri RM. Somasundararr; Director 60000

No other Director or Key Managerial Personnel holds any shares in the Company.

2.6. Board Meetings Attendance and Sitting fees

During the year under review Board Meetings were held and sitting fees have been paid to the

Directors as detailed herein:-

Director Name 25.04.2022 01.08.2022 28.10.2022 11.02.2023 Total(Rs.)

K. Thiagarajan 5000 5000 5000 5000 20000

Uma Kannan 5000 - 5000 5000 15000

RM. Somasundaram 5000 5000 - 5000 15000

A. Mariappan 5000 - - - 5000

M.Anbukani - - - 5000 5000

T.N.Ramanathan - - - - -

K.Vethachalam 5000 5000 5000 5000 20000

Ganesh AnanthaKrishnan 5000 5000 5000 5000 20000

L.Sevugan 5000 5000 - 5000 15000

CR.Venkatesh - 5000 5000 5000 15000

TOTAL 35000 30000 25000 40000 130000

G
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No sitting fees paid to Sri T. Kannan as he is the Chairman and Managing Director. Also For

Mr.T.N.Ramanathan, Director no sitting fees has been paid.

The Company Secretary, Sri S.Paramasivam, is the Secretary to the Board of Directors and has

attended all meetings of the Board of Directors.

2.7. Board Committees

In line with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations (LODR)
2015, the Company has constituted Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and

Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The composition, terms of reference, attendance and other details of these Committees are mentioned

later in this Report.

2.8Directorships and Committee membership in other companies

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more
than 5 Committees [as specified in Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015] across all listed companies in India of which he is a Director.

Independent Directors do not serve in more than 7 listed companies. None of the Independent Directors

are whole-time directors in any listed Company.

Directorships and Membership of Committees in other companies held by Directors as on March 31,
2023 and the Attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings and the Annual General Meeting is

given below:

VTM Other companies

Names Category No. of Attend- No. of No. of Whether

of the Board ance at Other memberships Chairman!

Directors Meetings the last Director- inBoard Member
attended AGMheld ships in Commit-

on companies tees
30.')6.2022

Thiru T. Kannan * ED 4 ,;' 8* 2 Chairman

6 Member

Thiru K.Thiagarajan NED 4 3* 1 Member

Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan NED 3 ./ 3 -



Thiru RM. Somasundaram NED 3 ./ - -
Thiru A Mariappan** NErD 1 1 12

,
Chairman
Member

Thiru T.N.Ramanathan NEID 2 1 1 Chairman

Thiru K. Vethachalam NED 4 6 1 Member

Thiru Ganesh Ananthakrishnan NErD 4 4 2 Member

Thiru L. Sevugan NEID 3 1 1 Member

Thiru CR.Venkatesh NEID 3 2

Thiru M.Anbukani'i<** NElD 1 1 2 Member

10: Independent Director VTM - VTM LIMITED

NED-Non Executive Director. NEID-Non Executive Independent Director.

Note: * includes Directorship in 1 Company coming under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Thiru T.Kannan, CMD, Smt. Um2 Kannan, Director and Thiru. RM. Somasundaram, Director have
attended the Annual General Meeting held on 30.06.2022. **Thiru AMariappan ceased to be Board
member, due to death in Sept 2022 . ***Thiru M.Anbukani was appointed to Board, in the meeting

held on 28.1 0.2022.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

3.1. Constitution and Composition

The Audit Committee was constituted during the financial year 2001-2002, and reconstituted in view
of the changes in Independent Directors in 2022-23. Accordingly, the Audit Committee composition

has been as under:

From 1-4-2022 till 18-09-2022 consist of following Directors

Director Category

Thiru A Mariappan Chairman

Thiru Ganesh Ananthakrishnan Member

Thiru L.Sevugan Member
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From 19-09-2022 ti1l28-1 0-2022 consist of following Directors

Director Category

Thiru Ganesh Ananthakrishnan Member

Thiru L.Sevugan Member

Thiru CR.Venkatesh Member

From 28-10-2022 * consists of following Directors

Director Category

Thiru M.Anbukani Chairman

Thiru Ganesh Ananthakrishnan Member

Thiru L.Sevugan Member

*from end of the meeting

The Chairman and Managing Director is permanent invitee in all meetings. The Company Secretary is
the Secretary to the Audit Committee. All Directors are financially literate and Mr.M.Anbukani,
Independent Director has Industry related financial management expertise. Besides, Mr.Ganesh
Ananthakrishnan also has sound finance experience and industrial expertise (including software related).
Mr.L. Sevugan has industry experience. Mr.C.R.Ven.!.;:ateshhas industry experience. The Statutory
Auditors are invited to the meetings to discuss with the Directors the scope of audit, their comments
and recommendation on the accounts, records, risks, .nternal procedures and internal controls of the

Company.

3.2 Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover all the areas mentioned under Part C of the
Schedule II to the SEBI (Listing Obligations &Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board has also included in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the monitoring, implementing and review of risk management plan as required under
Regulation 18 and as per Part C (Role of Audit committee) of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The broad terms of reference of the
Audit Committee therefore include the whole review of financial reporting process and all financial
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results, statements and disclosures, recommending the same to the Board, reviewing the internal audit
reports, internal control systems and procedures. To meet the statutory auditors and discuss their
findings, their scope of audit, Post audit discussion, adequacy of internal audit functions, audit
qualifications, if any, appointment I removal and remuneration of auditors, changes in accounting policies
and practices including Ind AS, examining approval and disclosure of all related party transactions,
discuss with the management, the performance of the internal auditors and their remuneration. To
review compliance with listing agreements/ SEBI (LODR) Regulations, and other legal requirements
and the Company's financial and risk management plan and policies, its implementation and disaster
recovery plan and policies.

3.3 InternalAudit

The Internal Audit of the Company is carried out by M/s.GSN & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Coimbatore, periodically and they interact with Statutory auditors for the Company's audit matters.

3.4. Attendance and Sitting Fees

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held:

Director Name 25.04.22 01.08.22 28.10.22 11.02.23 Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Ganesh Ananthakrishnan 5000 5000 5000 5000 20000

A. Mariappan 5000 5000

L.Sevugan 5000 5000 5000 15000

M.Anbukani 5000 5000

C.R. Venkatesh 5000 5000

TOTAL 10000 15000 10000 15000 50000
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4. Remuneration to Directors:

Total Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending meetings of the Board and Committees

during the year ended March 31, 2023 is given below :

Name of the Director Sitting Fees
(For Board & Committee Meetings)

Thiru T. Kannan
(Chairman and Managing Director) --

Thiru K.Thiagarajan Rs.20000/-

Thiru RM. Somasundaram Rs.15000/-

Thiru T.N.Ramanathan --

Thiru A. Mariappan Rs.15000/-

Dr.(Smt.) Vma Kannan Rs.15000/-

Thiru K.Vethachalam Rs.20000/-

Thiru Ganesh Ananthakrishnan Rs.55000/-

Thiru L.Sevugan Rs.35000/-

Thiru M.Anbukani Rs.15000/-

Thiru CR.Venkatesh Rs.30000/-

Mr.A.Mariappan is not forming part of Board from 13.09.2022, due to demise.

Sa. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Constitution and Composition: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted onApril
25,2014 in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Sri. Ganesh Ananthakrishnan, an Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. The other
members are Sri.T.Kannan and Sri.M.Anbukani as on 31.03.2023.



Tenus of Reference: The terms ofreference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee cover
all the areas mentioned under Schedule II Part D of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The broad terms of
reference of the Nomination and RemunerationCommittee therefore include recommending a policy
relating to remuneration and employment, terms of Whole Time Directors and senior management
personnel, adherence to the remuneration/employment policy as finally approved by the Board of
Directors, preparing the criteria and identify persons who may be appointed as Directors or Senior
Managementof theCompany,prel:.minaryevaluationof everyDirector's performance,Boarddiversity,
compliance of the Code for Independent Directors referred to in Schedule IV of the CompaniesAct,
2013, compliancewith the Company's Code of Conductby Directors and employeesof the Company,
reporting non-compliances to the Board of Directors, recommending draft of the report required
under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 which will form part of the ::JirectorsReport to Shareholders,monitor loans to employees and
any other matters which the Boarc of Directors may direct from time to time.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, there were two meetings as below:

Director Name 25.04.22 (Rs.) 28.10.22 (Rs.) Total (Rs.)

GaneshAnanthakrishnan 5000 5000 10000

A. Mariappan 5000 - 5000

C.R.Venkatesh - 5000 5000

TOTAL 10000 10000 20000

Remuneration Policy: During the year, the Committee reviewed the Nomination and Remuneration
Policy and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the policy has been
approved by the Board of Directors.

The terms of reference of the Corrrnittee inter alia, include the following:

Successionplanning of the Board of Directors, and SeniorManagement Employees;

Identifying and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors/ Independent Directors based on
certain laid down criteria; identifyingpotential individualsfor SeniorManagementpositions.

G
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Formulate and review from time to time, the policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and senior management employees and their remuneration.

Review the performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel based on
certain criteria as approved by the Board. In review.ng the overall remuneration of the Board of
Directors and Senior Management, the Committee ensures that the remuneration is reasonable to

attract, retain good managerial talent.

Remuneration to Directors

Sri T. Karman, the Chairman and Managing Director cf the company is entitled to a remuneration not
exceeding 5% of the Net Profits as computed u/s. 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly a
sum of Rs.45.00 lakhs has been provided as remuneration for the year 2022-23.

The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fee; for every meeting of the Board or Committee
thereof attended by them. They are also entitled to commission not exceeding 1% of the net profits of
the Company.

5b. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Company established CSR Committee on 24th April 2014. The CSR Committee was charged
with the responsibilities to discharge functions related tc CSR activities to be carried out as per Schedule
VII of Companies Act 2013 and the amendments made thereon. As per notification issued by MCA,
there is no necessity to form CSR Committee if the prescribed CSR expenditure does not exceed
Rs.50 Lakhs in the year, the Board of Directors can discharge the CSR Committee functions and
activities. Therefore CSR Committee got disbanded ar.d future review of CSR obligations, including
progress monitoring, co-ordination with implementing agency, etc, came under the purview of Board
of Directors on and from 01.04.2021.

The CSR Policy, which was approved by the Board, is available on the Company's website.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the company Mr. T.N.F.amanathan, Mr. Ganesh Ananthkrishnan, Mr.
M.Anbukani, Mr. L.Sevugan and Mr. C.R.Venkatesh, met on 11th February, 2023 without the attendance
of Non-Independent Directors and members of management. They deliberated and reviewed the
performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. Besides they assessed the
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the
Board members that is necessary and essential for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform

their duties.
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SHARES

6. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Committee considered and reviewed the Terms of Reference of the Committee taking into account
the additional role ofSRC as amended under Schedule II Part D(B) of the SEB! (LODR) Regulations

Constitution and Composition: Tile Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been reconstituted in
terms of Regulation 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations duly amended consisting of
Sri T.N. Ramanathan an Independent Director as Chairman and Sri T. Kannan and Sri K.Vethachalam
as Members of the Committee. The committee met once during the year on 11.02.2023.

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee has approved the transfers, transmissions and demat requests
through Circular Resolution during the year. Mr. S. Paramasivam, Secretary of the Company, who is
also the Secretary and Compliance Officer for the Committee.

During the year ten grievances (including one outstanding at the beginning of year) regarding non­
receipt of shares applied for transfer/transmission, non-receipt of dividend, Balance Sheet and related
matters were received from the shareholders and excepting one received in last quarter, all were
redressed. There were no shares pending for transfer at the close of the year.

Reconciliation of Share capital audit

Mr. S.Ramalingam,PCS (CP Nurrber 23495) carries out the reconciliation of Share capital audit as
mandated by SEBI, and reports on the Reconciliation of total issued and Listed capital,and that of total
capital admittedlheld in Demat form with CDSL and NSDL and those held in physical form.This audit
is carried out on quarterly basis, and the report thereon is submitted to stock exchanges and also
placed before the Stakeholder Relationship committee of the Board

Information on Unclaimed Dividend

The company till the ended financial year 2023, has transmitted 798100 equity shares of the company
into DEMAT account of the IEPF Authority held with NSDL (DP ID Client lD IN300708-l 0656671)
in terms of Provisions of Section 124(6) of the companies Act 2013, and the related IEPF Rules.
These equity shares were the shares of holders whose unclaimed dividend pertaining to the earlier
years, had been transferred to IEPF and who had not encashed their dividends for seven subsequent
financial years. The company dur.ng the year ended 2023, has transmitted 33500 equity shares of the
company into DEMAT account 0= the IEPF Authority held with NSDL (DP ID Client ID IN300708-
10656671) in terms of Provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act 2013, and the IEPF rules,
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relating to year 2014-15,totalling 7981OO,shares in the above said NSDL demat account(DP ID Client

ID IN300708-1 0656671 ).

The Company intimated through individual reminders to concerned shareholders advising them to
encash their dividend, for the unclaimed period, before transfer of the shares to the Fund.

The Company will be intimating through individual reminders to concerned shareholders advising
them to encash their dividend and the complete list of such shareholders, whose shares will be due for
transfer to IEPF during 2023-24 and it has been placed in the website of company.

Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Company is committed in making timely payment

of dividend.

The Unclaimed dividend relating to past 7 years are as below:

Particulars Year Amount

Relating to Rs.

Unclaimed dividend 2015-16 1180443.00

Unclaimed dividend 2')16-17 1257943.50

Unclaimed dividend 2017-18 1243863.00

Unclaimed dividend 2')18-19 1475693.10

Unclaimed dividend-Int 2')19-20 1072333.80

Unclaimed dividend 2')20-21 812809.00

Unclaimed dividend 2.021-22 921555.30

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.03.2023:

No. of Shares No. of % of No. of % of

held Shareholders Shareholders Shares Shareholding

!

Up to 5000 4343 94.87 2323648 5.78

5001 - 10000 86 1.88 598192 1.49

1000 1 - 20000 68 1.49 982280 2.44

20001-30000 28 0.61 728844 1.81
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30001-40000 14 0.31 494790 1.23

40001-50000 3 0.06 132914 0.33

50001- 100000 18 0.39 1409137 3.50

100001 - above 18 0.39 33557795 83.42

Total 4578 100.00 40227600 100.00

Shareholding pattern as on 3151March 2023:

Shareholders No. of Shares held % of total shares held

Promoters 30169700 75.00

Corporate Bodies 1246731 3.10

Public 8576528 21.32

NRI's 234641 0.58

Total 40227600 100.00

The Company has not issued any 3S0P or ESOS to its Employees / Directors.

Dematerialisation of shares:

The shares of the Company have oeen dematerialized and the unique ISIN number allotted for the
Company as under:

ISIN INE222FOI029

Currently 96.25% of the total shares have been dematerialised.

The Shares held by Promoters have all been dematerialised.

Listing at Stock Exchanges:

Sl.No Name of the Exchange Code Address

1. Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd 532893 Regd. Office: Floor 25, PI
Towers, Dalal Street,
MUMBAI - 400 00 I
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TRADING SYMBOL AT BSE

Demat ISIN No.

VTM

INE222FO1029

Share Price movements:

Market price data Exchange BSE

Month HIGHRs. LOWRs.

APRIL 2022 65.00 41.10

MAY 2022 61.40 48.00

JUNE 2022 5~.95 42.30

WLY2022 49.60 42.95

AUGUST 2022 55.95 44.50

SEPTEMBER 2022 64.00 50.40

OCTOBER 2022 55.75 45.30

NOVEMBER 2022 52.70 49.00

DECEMBER 2022 52.65 46.80

JANUARY 2023 50.10 46.95

FEBRUARY 2023 49.50 47.10

MARCH 2023 5Cl40 44.10

The share quotations are stated for the Re 1/- Face value of the company's equity share.

Stock Options: NIL.

Plant Location: Sulakarai, Vii udhunagar, Pin: 626 003
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6.1 Compliance Officer: Mr. S. Paramasivam Company Secretary, is the Secretary of
this Committee and the Compliance Officer and his contact details are given below:

Mr. S. Paramasivam,
Company Secretary
VTM Limited
Sulakarai, Virudhunagar, NDIA

Phone:0452-2482595-Ex:549
Email: complianceofficer@_vtmill.com

6.2 Details of Complaints from Shareholders:

No. of complaints remaining unresolved as on 31.03.2022

No. of complaints/Requests received during the year

No. of complaints/Requests resolved during the year

No. of complaints unresolved as on 3l.03.2023

10

10

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings are given below

Details of the last three Annual General Meetings (AGM).

AGM for the Financial Year ended Date & Time of AGM

315t March, 2022 30th June 2022 at 11.00 AM

3151 March, 2021 nrd June 2021 at 11.00 AM

3151 March, 2020 5tl1 August 2020 at 11.30 AM

EGM / Postal Ballot meetings:

There was no EGM conducted during the financial year ended 31.3.2023.

An event through e-voting and Postal ballot was carried out (for Director appointment approval).

All the resolutions set out in the AGM Notice was passed by the Shareholders (e-voting).

The Annual General Meeting, was held at the Registered Office of the Company.
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7.1 Pledge of shares held by Promoters: No pledge has been created by the Promoters on the

equity shares held as on March 31, 2023.

7.2 Special resolutions:

. The company has neither passed special resolution nor resolution requiring postal ballot in the

Annual General Meeting held on June 30, 2022

An event through e-voting and Postal ballot was carried out, for appointment of Director
Sri.M.Anbukani (passed as special resolution and voted through e-voting).

At the ensuing 76th Annual General Meeting .n be held on 3rd July, 2023 no resolution is

proposed to be passed by postal ballot.

7.2.1 Pursuant to section 108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and other applicable requirements,
voting at the 76th Annual General Meeting will be made through electronic voting. The electronic
voting period commences on 28th June, 2023 (;1:00 am) and ends on 2nd July, 2023 (6:00 pm)

both days inclusive.

7.2.2 Scrutinizer for electronic voting: Mr. S.R.1malingam, Practising Company Secretary
(C.P No 23495) of Madurai, has been appointed as the Scrutiniser to scrutinize the electronic
voting process in a fair and transparent manner and to give his report to the Chairman.

8. DISCLOSURES:

8.1 Details of transactions with related parties have been reported in the Notes to Accounts. All the
transactions with related parties are at arm's length basis. All transactions entered into with
Related Parties as defined under the Compan.es Act, 2013 and as per Regulation 23 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the financial

year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length pricing basis.

There were no materially significant transactions with the related parties during the year, which
were in conflict with the interests of the company and that require approval of the company in
terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

The Transactions with the related parties of routine nature have been reported as per IndAS 24
notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.



8.2 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: Pursuant to the notification issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs dated 16th February, 2015 relating to the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 the Company has adopted "Ind AS" with effect from I" April, 2017.
Accordingly, the Financial Statements for the year 2022-23 have been prepared in compliance
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

8.3 Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards (AS 18) has been made in the notes
to the Ind AS Financial Starements.

8.4 There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company or any penalties or strictures
imposed on the Company by stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter
related to capital markets during the last three years.

8.5 The Company has in place an Employee Concern (Whistle Blower) which is also available on
the Company's website. No personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee to lodge
their grievances.

8.6 All mandatory requirements have been appropriately complied with.

8.7 The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of the Directors' Report.

8.8 No presentations were made to institutional investors and analysts during the year.

8.9 The Company does Not have any Subsidiary or Associate.

8.10 There have been no public issues, rights issues or other public offerings during the past five
years. The Company has nor issued any GDRs/ADRslWarrants or any convertible instruments.

8.11 Disclosures

a) Related Party Transactions

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act,
2013, and the Listing Regulations during the financial year 2022-23 were in the ordinary
course of business and arms length basis and approval of the Audit Committee was also
obtained. Necessary disclosures regarding Related Party Transactions are given in the

notes to the Financia. Statements.

The Board has approved a policy for Related Party Transactions and the same has been
uploaded on the website of the Company. The web-link thereto is as under llttpsJL
www.vtmill.comLimages/investor/Policy_on_Related_Party _Transactions.pdf
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b) Compliance with IndianAccounting Standards (lnd-AS )

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the accounting
policies and practices as prescribed in the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). The
significant accounting policies which are consistently applied have been set out in the
Notes to the Financial Statements. There is no deviation in following the treatments
prescribed in Ind AS in preparation of financial statements for the year 2022-23.

c) Statutory Compliance, Strictures and Penalties

The Company has compliedwith all the requirements of the Stock Exchanges as well as
the regulations and guidelines prescribed oy the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEB1).Therewerenopenaltiesor stricturesimposedon theCompanyby StockExchanges
or SEBI or any statutory authority on anymatter related to capitalmarkets during the last
three years.

The Companyhas obtainedAnnual ComplianceCertificate for the year ended 31st March,
2023 as per SEBI Circular from Mr.S.Ramalingam, B.L.,ACS., Practicing Company
Secretary confirming compliance with SEBI regulations.

d) CEO & CFO Certification

The CMD Sri.T.Kannanand CFO Sri.AN.Paramasivam,have certified to the board with
regard to the financial statements and other matters as required by the SEBI Listing
Regulations. The certificate is appended as an Annexure to this report. They have also
provided quarterly certificates on financ.al results while placing the same before the
Board pursuant to Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

e) VigilMechanism IWhistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and Regulation 22
of ListingRegulations, the Company has formulatedVigilMechanism IWhistle Blower
Policy to enable Directors and employees of the Company to report concerns about
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Code of Conduct, that could
adversely impact the Company's operations, business performance, in a secure and
confidentialmanner.The said policy provides adequate safeguards against victimization
ofDirectors/employees. The VigilMechanism IWhistle Blower Policy is available on the
website of the Company under the web-link https-llwww.vtmill.comlimageslinvestor/
Whistle-Blower-Policy-Vigil-Mechanism.;Jdf.The Companyaffirms that no personnel of
the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee to lodge their grievances.
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f) Certificate on Non-disqualification of Directors

The Company has obtained certificate from Mr.S.Ramalingam, Practising Company
Secretary confirming that none of the Directors of the Company have been debarred or
disqualified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs
or any such authority from being appointed or continuing as Director of the Company and

the same is also attached to this Report.

g) Subsidiaries

The Company does not have Subsidiary or Associate.

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

9.1 Quarterly results are published in the Business Standard (All India Edition) and the Tamil
version thereof in Malai Malar, within the stipulated time (within 48 hours) after the Board
meeting where the results are approved as mentioned in the SEBI Regulations. These financial
results and quarterly shareholding pattern are electronically transmittediUploaded to the stock
exchange and are also uploaded on the Company's website www.vtmill.com.

9.2 Shareholder communication including Notices and Annual Reports are being sent to the email
addresses of Members available with the Company and the Depositories. Annual Accounts are
sent to Members at least 25 days before the date of Annual General Meeting.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part ofthe Annual Report is enclosed.
[Regulation 34 and Schedule V of the Listing SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations., 2015.]

9.3 The Company's website:

www,vtmill.commakes online announcements of Board Meeting results of the quarterly financial
results, announcement of the date of Annual General Meeting and proposed dividend and other
announcements. Copies of Notices sent to Shareholders are also available on the website, along

with the newspaper publication,

9.4 Date of payment of Dividend:

Dividend if declared by Annual General Meeting will be paid to the shareholders within the

stipulated time as per the Act.

me;:$; ""_m .,'M, J4JtJU\&i&W4kw,&m. =..Ii"'A ,wac g OM)Jik,Mh'; -kHi4, t ;;IMM.R9MMI$I!IO;;;;. _,n tAft ._ 1# ; .JAS



[VTM LIMITE~

9.5 Status of Physical shares-Suspense Escrow demat account:

As per SEBI Notification dated 24th Jan,2022 and SEBI Circular dated 25th Jan,2022 in case
the securities holder/claimant fails to submit the demat clearance, as given by the RTA(KFin
technologies Ltd)to the DP within the specified period of 120 days (as per circular dated 1'\
April 2022) RTA/ Issuer Companies shall cred.t the securities to the Suspense Escrow Demat
Account of the Company, exclusively opened by the Company (as directed by SEBI) for this
purpose.

Therefore, due to the above reason and due to the SEBI circular on early conversion of physical
shares in to Demat shares, the physical shareholders shall have to adhere to the timeline and
also dematerialise their shareswithin 30th July, 2023.

9.6 Address for communication:

All communicationregarding sharetransactions,changeof address,bankmandates,nominations
etc. should be addressed to the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company at the
followingaddress:

Registrar & Transfer Agent:
KFin Technologies Ltd.
(Unit: VTM LIMITED)
Karvy SeleniumTowerB, Plot No 31 & 32,
Financial District,Nanakramguda,
SerilingampallyMandal, Hyderabad - 500 032.
Ph: +9104067161518
Contact Person: Mr.D.SURESH BABU- Manager -Corporate Registry.

The shareholders may also address their correspondence to:­
VTM LIMITED
Sulakarai
Virudhunagar-.626003.
Phone:04562-234801

VTM LIMITED
Chairman's Office: Thiazarajar Mills Premises
Kappalur, Madurai-62_i_Q08.
Phone:0452-2482595



Grievances. if any, may also be addressed to the Company Secretary at email at
QQlllpfumceofficer@vtmill.com

Shareholders are requested to mention their Folio Nos., DP-ID and Client ID in case of demat shares,
phone and mobile nos. and their Email ID so that the Company/Compliance Officer can contact them
and redress their complaints immediately. However, for instructions like change of bank mandate,
change of address, transfers & transmission of shares etc. letters duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned should be sent, otherwise such requests cannot be processed by the Registrars. Email ID
of Shareholders will have to be registered with the Company to enable the Company or the Registrars
to communicate electronically.

Communication to shareholders on Email - Green Initiative of Exchanges:

As mandated by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). and as per ESG Guidelines (Environment
Social and Governance Guidelines) specified documents like Notices, Annual Report, ECS advices
for Dividends, etc. are sent to the shareholders at their email address, as registered with their Depository
Participants / Company / Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA), which help in prompt delivery of
document, reduce paper consumption, save trees and avoid loss of documents in transit. Due to this
reason Shareholders holding shares in Physical form are requested to send their email id to company.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

1. Date, Time and Venue of the 3rd July, 2023 at 12.05 pm at the

Annual General Meeting. Registered Office at Sulakarai,
Virudhunagar.

2. Dates of Book Closure/Record Register of Members will be closed
date for Financial Year 2022-23 from 23rd June 2023 to 3rd July, 2023

3. Results for Quarter ending 4th Week of July, 2023.

June 30, 2023 (Provisional)

Results for Quarter ending yd Week of October, 2023.

September 30, 2023 (Provisional)

Results for Quarter ending 3rd Week of January, 2024.

December 31, 2023 (Provisional)

Financial Calendar - 1st April 2023 4thWeek of April, 2024.

To 31st March 2024 (Audited)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ONCORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of VTM Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by VTM Limited ('the
Company') for the year ended March 31,2023 as per Regulations 17-27, Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation
46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations').

Management's responsibility for compliance with the conditions ofthe listing regulations

The Company's Management is responsible for compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents as stipulated
under the Listing Regulations. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance

of corporate governance process relevant to the compliance of the conditions. Responsibility also
includes collecting, collating and validating data and designing, implementing and monitoring of Corporate
Governance process suitable for ensuring compliance with the above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

Auditors' responsibility

Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance ofthe conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither anauditnoran expression
of opinion on the financial statements ofthe Company. Pursuant to the requirements ofthe Listing
Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance whether the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations for the year ended
March 31,2023.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for
Special Purposes (Revised 2016), Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia (ICAI) and the Standards on Auditing specified
under the Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this
certificate.

The Guidance Note on Reports or certificates for Special Purposes requires that we comply with the
ethical requirements ofthe Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.We have complied with the relevant
applicable requirements of the ~Iandard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that
Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related
Sen/ices Engagements.

_____ ---' ------ -----------
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in
Regulations 17 to 27, Clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and paragraphs C, D and

E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, as applicable.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor as
to the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restrictions on use

This certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to
enable the Company to comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, and it should not be
used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any
liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is

shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.004915S/ S200036

Sd/­
(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)

Partner
Membership No. 027501
UDIN: 23027501BGWMVC5613

Place: Madurai
Date: May 3, 2023
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Annexure II

S.Ramalingam, M.Com.,BL, ACS.
Company Secretary in Practice
ACS 61773 CP.No:23495

7114Shri lakshmi Illam, Kurinji St,
Ganapathy Nagar, New Vilangudi

Madurai-6250 18; Phone :9894311704.

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31'1March, 2023.

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,
VTM LIMITED,
(CIN: L17111TN 1946PLC003270)
SULAKARAI,
Virudhunagar - 626003.

I have conducted the Secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by VTM LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report
that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
31.03.2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject

to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 3 151March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

-_. -- - -----------
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(i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (theAct) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The DepositoriesAct, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign ExchangeManagementAct, 1999and the rules and regulationsmade thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(v) The followingRegulationsand Guidelinesprescribedunder the Securitiesand Exchange Board
ofIndia Act, 1992(,SEBI Act'):-

(a) SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 & 2018.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers)Regulations, 2011;

(c) The Securitiesand ExchangeBoard ofIndia (ProhibitionofInsider Trading)Regulations,
1992;

(d) TheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardoflndia (IssueofCapitalandDisclosureRequirements)
Regulations,2009;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993regarding the CompaniesAct and dealing with client;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

(vi) TaxationLaws, Labour Laws and Environmental Laws.

I have also examined compliancewith the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) SEBI (ListingObligationsandDisclosureRequirements)Regulations,

2015 read with the ListingAgreements entered into by the Companywith Bombay Stock
Exchange.



(VTM~;~rr~J
- -..-.--."-- ..--- ..~-~-..-..---~---.~--.~-----------.-------.-----~

(iii) SEBI (Prohibition oflnsider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and all other regulations of SEBI

as applicable to the Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Managing Director,
Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance

with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

participation at the meeting.

The decisions of the Board have been unanimously passed.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations ofthe company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the company has convened the Annual General Meeting
and through Postal Ballot for appointment of Mr. M. Anbukani (DIN 00888339) as Non-Executive and
Independent Director with e-voting facility after giving required notices to the members ofthe Company
duly complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an

integral part of this report.

Sd/­
S.Ramalingam,
Company Secretary in Practice
ACS 61773 IC P No. :23495
PR CODE:2352/2022

Date : 21.04.2023
Place : Madurai - 625 018.

UDIN :A061773EOOOI66878
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'Annexure A'
(To the Secretarial Audit Report of Mis. VTM Limited for the financial year ended 31/03/2023

To
The Members,
VTM Limited,
Sulakarai,
Virudh unagar.

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31/03/2023 of even date is to be read along

with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. r have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. Ihave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts

of the Company.

4. Wherever required, Ihave obtained the Management representation about the compliance of

laws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of Management. My examination was limited to the verification of

procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.

Signature: Sd/- S.Ramalingam,
Company Secretary in Practice
ACS 61773 .c P No.: 23495
PR CODE:2352/2022

21.04.2023
Madurai - 625 018.
UDIN :A061773EOOOI66878
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (lO)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To

The Members,
VTM LIMITED,
(CIN: L17111 TN1946PLC003270)

SULAKARAI,
Virudhunagar - 626 003

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors ofVTM LIMITED having CIN : L17111 TN1946PLC003270 and having registered office
at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar-626003 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me
by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read
with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board ofIndia (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20] 5. In my opinion and to the best of my information and
according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal
www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its
officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for
the Financial Year ending on 31st March 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed
or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment

No in Company

l. Sri.T.Kannan (CMD) (10040674 23.03.1973

2. Smt.Uma Kannan ('0467462 25.03.2015

3. Sri.K. Thiagarajan ('3638370 20.04.2016

4. Sri.RM.Somasundaram (0071510 01.12.l984

5. Sri.TN .Ramanathan (2561794 0l.04.2019

-------- -



MLIMITED

6. SrLK.Vethachalam 00381667 15.10.2015

7. Sri.Ganesh Ananthakrishnan 00003586 25.03.2021

8. Sri.L. Sevugan 03580186 25.03.2021

9. Sri.Chinnakonda
Rajendran Venkatesh 00122065 25.04.2022

10. Sri. Mariappan Anbukani 00888339 28.10.2022

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment 1continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Signature: Sd/-

Name of Company Secretary in practice: S. Ramalingam.

ACS No.61733 C P No. :23495
PRNo :235212022

Date : 19.05.2023
Place: Madurai - 625 018.

UDIN: A061773E000346948
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ANNEXURE-IV TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014.

1. Steps taken for conservation of energy

Energy Conservation:

Power generated from Wind electric generators continue to be utilised by the company, and it results
in savings to the company.

Also previous year's efforts in reducing consumption ofpower in compressors has resulted in savings
to the company.

2. Steps taken for alternate sources of energy & conservation of equipments

Auto Drawing Machine:

A New Auto Drawing Machine was installed during the Financial Year at a cost of Rs.489.S2
Lakhs.

New Auto Drawing Machine with advanced Technology was installed in the last financial year. Hence,
the time required for drawing got reduced from 18 hours to 3 hours. Loom downtime also got reduced
substantially. Also the quality of Beams drawn through the machine has improved besides reduction in
Pinning Operation thereby resulting in overall savings in the repair and maintenance costs.

New Boiler with Briquettes (Green fuel) / waste firewood as fuel:

With Continuous evaluation and operation using green .uel, a New Boiler with 2.S Ton capacity and at
a cost ofRs.89.1S Lakhs was put to use in the place of existing Boiler (4 Tons which was underutilized),
the company expects to save in monetary terms as well as reduction in Co2 emissions, when compared

to the use of conventional fuels.

Further the distance between Boiler and Utility Department has got reduced considerably thereby
resulting in reduction in transmission loss. The advantages are increase in Feed Water Temperature
and lesser condensate accrues. ',\-.th the installation of this New Boiler with Briquettes technology, the
dependence on Fossil fuel is substantially minimized.
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Sample Loom:

A Sample Loom at a cost of Rs 35.55 Lakhs with single end sizing and warping was installed to
develop different dobby designs for the market and also for i.nproved Customer satisfaction.

Alternate Source of energy:

Environment Social and Governance (ESG):

As with the current requirementltrend of leaning more on ESG, the Company is in the process of
increasing Solar Plant Capacity from 500 KW to 800 KW at a cost of Rs.21 0 Lakhs, where the
erections are to be completed in the current financial year, will result in further reduction of power cost
in the times to come, and to that extent of generation the use of conventional fuel dependence is

minimized.

A. POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

31.3.2023 31.3.2022

Electricity
a) Purchased:

Units
Total Amount
Rate Per Unit
(Including Maximum demand charges)

b) Own Generation:
Through Diesel Generator:
Units
Units per litre of oil
Cost Per Unit

4524633 1974337
RS.53719183.55 Rs.31554406.82

RS.l1.87 Rs.15.98

c) Through Windmill:
Produced Units*
Availed Units

18942 1,28,457
l.66 2.78

Rs.55.66 Rs.29.78

67,05,799 61,68,795
67,05,799 61,68,795

573989 578627
573989 578627

d) Through Solar Power:
Produced Units
Availed Units

e) Through Independent Power Producers
and through Power Exchange:
Units
Rate per Unit

18,94,548
Rs.7.23

50,99,636
Rs.5.33

*Produced units represent units generated after adjustment of line losses.

J%aMQJ4MAl@I.4.s.WJ ... "lUI J£Vl4ki$4&kM&M=iU4A_;iMi&i4 «Iii_A"": i:;s;;am:tlJl(4ikkiW,QiA'_ a"we. _.ZMJM,M
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B.CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION OF CLOTH:

Electricity per Metre of production of cloth Rs.3.67 Rs.3.71

l"illk: 1. No standard rate of consumption is available.

2. As the company is producing numerous varieties or sorts of cloth, separate details for

each variety or sort are not given.

U. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:

The Humidification plant was replaced with newer one with Energy efficient Motors.

III. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The company has earned during the year under report, foreign exchange equivalent to Rs.4,178.49

Lakhs ( FOB value of exports) through direct exports.

The foreign exchange outgo during the period is as given below vs Rs.198.19 Lakhs spent(in total) in

Previous Financial year.

Import purchase C.I.F. Value:

Capital Goods Rs. 492.69 Lakhs

Components & Spares Rs. 36.06 Lakhs

Total Rs. 528.75 Lakhs

Amidst challenges, the company is striving to expand the export market segment by broadening its

geographical sweep.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Kappalur, Madurai
3rd May, 2023. CHAIRMAN
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ANNEXURE -VII

ANNUALREPORT ON CSRACTIVITIES

CSR Policy of the Company

1. Brief outline of CSR Policy of company

The policy encompasses the company's philosophy on giving back to society as a Corporate
citizen, and lays down the guidelines/mechanism forundertaking sociallyuseful programme for
sustainable development of rural communities/educationpurposes.

2. Composition ofCSR Committee

The CSR Committee was charged with the responsibilities to discharge functions related to
CSRactivities to be carriedout asper ScheduleVII of CompaniesAct 2013·and the amendments
made thereon.As per notification issuedbyMCA, there is no necessity to formCSRCommittee
if the prescribed CSR expenditure does not exceed Rs. 50 Lakhs in the year, the Board of
Directors can dischargethe CSR committee functions and activities. Therefore CSRCommittee
got disbandedandfuturereviewofCSR obligations, includingprogressmonitoring,co-ordination
with implementing agency, etc.,came under the purview of Board of Directors on and from
01.04.2021.

3. The web-linkwhere CompositionofCSR Committee,CSR Policy and CSRprojects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

www.vtmill.com

4. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report).

Not Applicable

5. Details of the amountavailable for set off inpursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the
financialyear, if any:



Sl. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount required to be set- off for the
from preceding financial years financial year, if any (Rs. in Lakhs)
(Rs. in Lakhs)

I 2021-22 2.68 22.41
2

TOTAL

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 1254.53Lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company 3.S

per section 135(5) Rs.25.09 Lakhs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous financial years. Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year. if any Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c). Rs.25.09 Lakhs

8. (a)CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specifiedunder
Spent for the Unspent CSR Account as per ScheduleVII as per second proviso to section 135(5).
Financial Year. section 135(6).
(in Rs.) Name of the

Amount. Date of transfer. Fund Amount. Date of transfer.

Rs. 26.45Lakhs Nil Nil NA NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

SI. Name Item from the Local Location of the Project Amount Amount spent in Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation

No. of the list of activities area project. duration. allocated the current transferred to Implement Through Implementing

Project. in Schedule vrr (Ves/No). tor rbe financial Year (in Unspent CSR ation Agency

to the Ad. project R,.). Account for the
(in Rs.). project as per Direct

Section 135(6) (ill
R,.).

(Yes/

No).

CSR

State. District. Name Registration
number.

Infrastru ii.Prornoting Yes TN Madurai Two years 80,00,000 Nil NO; iKKTCMCT CSROOO03093
1. cture Education ndirect

Enhance
ment
Proiccts

2.
fOrAL
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

SI. Name of Item from Local Location ofthe project. Amount Mode of Mode of implementation -
No. the the list of area spent for implementati Through implementing

Project activities in (Yes/ the on - agency.
schedule No). project Direct
VII to the (in Rs.). (YeslNo).
Act.

CSR
State. District. Name. registration

number.

1. ~IL iNA ~A

2.

3.

TOTAL

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Rs. 26.45 lakhs

Sl.No. Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as persection 135(5) Rs.25.09Lakhs

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year RS.26.45Lakhs

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs.l.36 Lakhs

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes oractivities of
the previous financial years, if any Rs.2.68Lakhs

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years[(iii)-(iv)] RsA.04Lakhs

9.(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:Nil

SI. Preceding Amount Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount
No. Financial transferred to in the under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if remaining to

Year. Unspent CSR reporting any. be spent in
Account under Financial Year succeeding
section 135 (6) (in Rs.). Nallle financial
(in Rs.) or tile Amount (in Rs). Date of transfer. years. (in Rs.)

Fum

1. - -- - -- - -
2.
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s):
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

SI. Project Name of Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
No. ID. the Year in duration. amount spent on the amount spent project -

Project. which the allocated project in at the end of
project W;3S for the the reporting Completed
commenced. project reporting Financial 1011going.

(in Rs.). Financial Year. (in Rs.)
Year (in
Rs).

1. ~021-22 lInfrastructure March,20n 12 Years 80,00,000 70,82,778 70,82,778 Completed
!Enhancement
Projects

2.

3.
TOTAL 80,00,000 70,82,778 70,82,778 Completed

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year

Not applicable

(Asset-wise details) -Nil

1. Date of creation or acquisit.on of the capital asseu s).: NA

11. Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NA

1II. Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is

registered, their address e.c. NA

IV. Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset). N~

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit

as per section 135(5).

Not applicable

K. Thiagarajan
Director

T. Kannan
CMD
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Annexure VIII

Chairman & Managing Director's Certificate

Annual Certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V to the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremen:s) Regulations, 2015

DECLARATION

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby declare that all the Board members and
Senior Management Personnel of the Company have complied with the Code of Conduct of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023.

T. Kannan

Chairman & Managing Director

(DIN - 00040674)
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Annexure IX

Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) ofSEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015:

We, T. Kannan, Chairman anc Managing Director and AN. Paramasivam, Chief Financial Officer
of the Company certify that -

A. We have reviewed Financia. Statements and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31.3 .2023,
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining
to financial reporting and we have disclosed to theAuditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies
in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps they
have taken or propose to take to rectify those deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

(i) there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the
year.

(ii) the company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) in terms of Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 for the current financial year and the same
have been disclosed .n the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) there are no instances of fraud of which we became aware and the involvement therein
if any of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's
internal control system over financial reporting.

T. Kannan (DIN - 00040674)
Chairman & Managing Director

Date: 03.05.2023
Place: Madurai-8

AN. Paramasivam
Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure X :

Remuneration Policy

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of four Directors of which two are Independent
Directors and one Non-Executive Director and Chairperson (Executive) as the Members of the
Committee and as such complies with the obligations of the Companies Act, 2013 and the corporate
governance requirements of the Listing Agreement with stock exchanges. The Chairperson of this
Committee is an Independent Director. The Chairperson of the Board of Directors is a member of this

Committee but will not Chair this Committee.

The Committee operates under formal terms of reference which were approved by the Board on April
29, 2014. These terms of reference have been prepared in a manner to generally maintain overall
continuity with the nomination and remuneration policies of the company while complying with the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreements with stock exchanges.

Role and Responsibilities

The Committee's foremost priorities are to ensure that the Company has the best possible leadership
and maintains a clear plan for both Executive and Non-Executive Director succession. The Committee
also reviews Senior Management succession. Its prime focus is therefore on the strength of the Board
and the Senior Management team and ensuring that appointments are made on merit, against objective
criteria, selecting the best candidate for the post. The Committee advises the Board on the appointments,
retirements and resignations from the Board and its Committees. It also advises the Board on similar
changes to the Senior Management of the Company.

The Committee and its members are empowered to obtain outside legal or other independent professional
advice, at the cost of the Company, in relation to its deliberations and to secure the attendance at its

meetings of any employee or other parties it considers necessary.

Criteria for appointments and independence ofDirectors

When considering appointments to the Board and its Committees, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee will draw up a specification for the role taking into consideration the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience of its existing members, the diversity of the Board and the Company's
ongoing requirements. The Company believes that diversity underpins the successful operation of an
effective Board and embraces diversity as a means of enhancing the business.

~ 79 ~liIi, c;



The recruitment process then focuses on appointing candidates who meet the criteria, who have the
relevant professional knowledge, professional qualifications and experience. Successful candidates
are likely to have demonstrable leadership qualities and interpersonal communication skills, act with

integrity and have international business exposure.

Care is taken to ensure that all proposed appointees have sufficient time available to devote to the role,
are compliant with the rules, policies and values of our Company and do not have any conflicts of

interest.

On appointments or promotions, the Committee will typically use the Remuneration Policy of the
Company to determine ongoing remuneration. However, the Committee retains the discretion to make
appropriate remuneration decisions outside the Standard Policy to meet specific circumstances.

Remuneration Policy

The overarching philosophy for remuneration within the company is to attract, retain and motivate
individuals of the caliber necessary to successfully implement the Company's business strategy. In
particular, this means ensuring that incentive plans are appropriate to encourage enhanced performance
and to avoid rewarding underperformance. In viewing and setting Company's remuneration policy, the
Committee seeks to balance the interests of its employees and those of its stakeholders, to support
Company strategy, where a meaningful portion of remuneration is performance linked.

Remuneration Policy for Managing Director:

An appropriate level of remuneration may be set to ensure that the Company can appoint Managing
Director of the necessary skill and experience by offering him market competitive remuneration reflecting
his individual experience, role and contribution. The appointment may be for a tenure of such years
from the date of his appointment not exceeding the period in terms of Section 196 and as prescribed
under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. The individual's performance will be reviewed annually
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee andrecommended to the Board enabling it to decide

the remuneration payable to the Managing Director.

The total remuneration package may be designed to provide an annual remuneration payable by way
of commission and other perquisites as decided by the Board cfDirectors however, not exceeding 5%
of the net profits of the company computed in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company for each financial
year within the maximum permissible limit. Further, in the event of his being Managing Director in any
other company, such remuneration shall not exceed the higher maximum limit admissible from anyone

of these companies, in terms of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.
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The Managing Director is not entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or the Committees
where he will be the Chairman/Member. He is entitled to have Chairman's Office at his convenience

at Company's expenses.

Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for atending meetings of the Board or its Committees
at rates which are within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. They are also entitled
to commission on net profits, as determined by the Board from time to time, not exceeding 1% of the
net profits of the Company for that year. The level of remuneration is set to attract and retain Non­
Executive Directors of the necessary skill and experience by offering them market competitive

remuneration.

Non-Executive Directors do not participate in Board discussions which relate to their own remuneration.
They receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in attending the Board, Committee and

other ad hoc meetings.

None of the Non-Executive Directors is entitled to receive compensation for loss of office at any time

or participate in any retirement plans.

Non-Executive Independent Directors are appointed in compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and must adhere to the Code for Independent Directors laid down under Schedule IV to the
Companies Act, 2013 and retain their independence during the entire tenure of appointment as an
Independent Director. The terms of service of Non-Executive Independent Directors are contained
in letters of appointment issued to them after their appointment at a general meeting of the Company.
The current policy for Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company is to serve for a maximum
period of two terms of five years each, with review at the end of the first five year term, subject

always to mutual agreement and annual performance evaluation,

Remuneration is paid subject to deduction of Income Tax at source and payment of applicable GST.

Remuneration to Senior Management Personnel

Senior Management Personnel include one level below the Managing Director. Accordingly, the
Personnel such as Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Vice President / General Manager /
Deputy General Manager but not including Administrative Staff. An appropriate level of remuneration
is set to ensure that the Company is able to recruit and retain Senior Management with the necessary
skills, professional qualifications, experience, and compliance with the rules and policies of the Company.
Market competitive remuneration is offered to individuals reflecting their experience, and contribution
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within the Company. The individual's performance is reviewed from time to time with changes in
remuneration normally. In considering any increase in base salary, the Committee will mainly consider
the role, changes injob scope, responsibility and complexity. Total remuneration package is designed
to provide an appropriate balance between fixed and variable components with a focus on long term
variable pay so that strong performance is incentivised but without encouraging excessive risk taking.

Remuneration arrangements of SEnior Management Personnel consist of the same elements as those
of other employees i.e. Basic Salary, HRA and other allowances, retirement benefits (i.e. Provident
Fund and Gratuity as per the Company's Schemes applicable to all employees) and perquisites as per
Rules of the Company applicable to all employees according to their seniority including insurance, car
and fuel perquisites

As applicable to all employees, Senior Management Personnel are entitled to avail themselves of 30
days leave in a year and unavailed leave can be accumulated as per the rules of the Company up to
a maximum of 30 days.

---------------------------------,----
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of VTM Limited

Report on the audit ofthe Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of VTM Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the
balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 ("Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 3 1,2023, and its profits, total comprehensive income,
the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended as on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those STandards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (lCAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's code of ethics.We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those ma.: zrs that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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In our opinion and based on the .nformation and explanations given to us, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Presentation and disclosure of additional information pursuant to the amendments to Schedule III to

the Companies Act, 2013

With a view to facilitate enhanced disclosures and transparency in operations by companies in India,
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs :MCA) has issued a batch of amendments to the Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013 relating to presentation and disclosures in the financial statements. The Company
has evaluated the requirements and made the relevant disclosures, including restatement of the
disclosures made in the comparative period and current period. This being the second year applicability
of the amendments to Schedule III, more guidance was available on the presentation and disclosure

requirements based on the aforesaid amendments.

Principal audit procedures

• We assessed the Company's process to identify, assess, and respond to risks of material
misstatement in the disclosure requirements pursuant to the aforesaid amendments to

Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

• As part of the evaluation of whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained,
we have evaluated the appropriateness of our initial risk assessments and revised previous
risk assessments for certain financial statement areas, including the specific disclosures

required by the amendments.

• We have designed, performed additional procedures, including verification of the source
and completeness 0:'" data used by the management for making proper disclosures as

required by the Act.

• We have audited the management's estimates used in the disclosures by checking the
reasonableness of underlying assumptions in making those key estimates.

• We have considered .he basis of management judgment in making the disclosures taking
into consideration the date of the financial statements, the facts and circumstances
pertaining to the entity, and the conditions that existed at, or arose after, that date. We
have considered all subsequent events and transactions to substantiate our conclusions on
the appropriateness of management's disclosures in accordance with the requirements of

the amendments.

• We have carried out a detailed analysis of data and performed additional analytical
procedures for validating the management's disclosures.
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors'report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Repcrt, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our

auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as

amended from time to time, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to tree preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
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going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors'responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably oe expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of materialmisstaterr.ent of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, 0:- the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures mace by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are ir.adequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
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report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue

as a gomg concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated it. our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give inAnnexure "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe

Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for .he purposes of our audit;
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this report

are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified .mder Section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31,2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and be operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our informat.on and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions

of section 197 of the Act; and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the

best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 44 to the financial statements;

b. The Company has made provision,as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including

derivative contracts; and

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company
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d. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,

1. no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities' Intermediaries', with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company' Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee, security

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

ll. no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities' Funding Parties', with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party' Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of

the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

lll. Based onaudit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothir.g has come to our notice that has caused us
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material

misstatement.

e. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
dividend declared or paid during tie year by the company is in compliance with

section 123 of the Companies Act, 20l3.

For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

Caartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 004915S/ S200036

Sd/-

(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)

Partner
Membership No. 027501
UDIN: 2302750lBGWMVA8706

Place: Madurai
Date:May 3, 2023
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our
report to the members of VTM Lmited of even date)

1. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment.The Company does not have any intangible
assets, other than right of use assets accounted in accordance with Ind AS 116.

(b) The Company has a program of'verification to cover all the items of property, plant and
equipment in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.Pursuant
to the program, a portion of property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the
management during be year. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to usand based on
the examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds,
comprising all the immovable properties ofland and buildings which are freehold, are held
in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable
properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as property,
plant and equipment in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of
the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use
asset) during the year Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

2. (a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate
and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed on such verification.
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3.

4.

5.

6.

(b) The Company has a sanctioned working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
However, the Company has not drawn any amount from the aforesaid limit. However,
the quarterly returns or statements filed oy the company with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the bOCKSof account of the Company.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not made investments in/provided any guarantee or security/granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties in which the directors are interested. Accordingly, paragraph

3 (iii)ofthe Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security to which the
provisions of section 185 of the Act are apolicable. In respect of investments made by the
Company and loans given to parties other than those covered in Section 185 of the Act,
the Company had complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be depositsduring the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148 of the Act, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed

examination of the same.

7. In our opinion and accordingto the information and explanations given to us:

(a) Amounts deducted! accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, prov:dent fund, employees' state insurance, income­
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited by the Company
with the appropriate authorities.No undisputed amounts payable in respect of goods and
services tax, provi+ent fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.
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(b) Details of statutory oues referred to in sub-clause (a), which have not been deposited on

account of dispute are given below:

Statute Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where the

dues (INR in Lakhs) the amount relates dispute is pending

Employees Provident Disputed PF 62.37 Various periods Hon'ble Hight
Fund and Miscellaneous contribution Court
Provisions Act, 1952 payable

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax* 43.36 2017-18 CIT (Appeals),
Madurai

* Net of taxes paid under protest and adjusted by the department against refund due for other assessment years

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961). Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable.

9. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest

thereon to any lende- during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans obtained during the year were applied for the purpose for which they were availed.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised

on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries/associates/joint-ventures and accordingly,

paragraphs 3 (ix)( e) and 3 (ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

10. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debtinstruments) du-ing the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (a) of the Order is not

applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph

3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable.
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11. (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has
been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, paragraphs 3 (xi) (a) and (b) of
the Order are not applicable.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no whistle-blower complaints, have been received by the Company during the year.

12. The Company is not aNidhi Company ani accordingly,Paragraphs 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

13. Inouropinionandaccordingto the informationandexplanationsgiventous, the transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of theAct. Where
applicable, the details of such transactionshave been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards,

14. (a) In our opinionandaccordingto the informationand explanationsgiventous, theCompany
has an internal audit system, commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the internal auditors for the year under audit were considered by us, as
part of our audit procedures.

15. In our opinionandaccordingto the informationandexplanationsgiven tous, theCompany
has not entered into non-cash transactionswith directors or persons connectedwith them.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16. (a) In our opinionand accordingto the informationandexplanationsgivento us, theCompany
is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934.

(b) In our opinionand accordingto the informationandexplanationsgiven tous, theCompany
has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a
valid Certificateof Registration (CoR) frem the ReserveBank ofIndia as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) In ouropinionand accordingto the informationandexplanationsgiven tous, theCompany
is not a Core Investment Company (CIe) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank ofIndia. Accordingly,paragraph 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) In ouropinionand accordingto the informationandexplanationsgiven tous, theCompany
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other companies in the
Group.Accordingly,paragraph 3 (xvi) (dof the Order is not applicable.
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17. The Company has net incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

19. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financ.al liabilities, other information accompanying the fmancial statements,
our knowledge of the board of directors and management plans, there are no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date.

20. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts to be transferred to a fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Act.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, pursuant to
any ongoing project, to be transferred to special account in compliance with the provision
of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.

21. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
does not have investments in subsidiaries I associates or joint venture companies.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration NO.004915S1 S200036

Sd/-

(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)

Partner
Membership No. 027501
UDIN: 23027501BGWMVA8706

Place: Madurai
Date:May 3, 2023
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Annexure "B" to the IndependentAuditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of
our report to the Members of VTM Limited of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ofVTM Limited ("the Company")
as at March 31,2023, in conjunction with our audit of be financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management's responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
ofIndia. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection offrauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors'responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent appl.cable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those standards and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting wasestablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included ob.aining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, i.icluding the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial control system over financial reporting.
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Meaning ofInternal Financial Controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financial comrol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance :hat transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisirion, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit ofInternal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration NO.004915S/ S200036

SdI-

(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)
Partner
Membership No. 027501
UDIN:23027501BGWMVA8706

Place: Madurai
Date: May 3, 2023
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As at Asat
NoM March 31, 2023 MIn:h 31, 2022

4 9,346,26 9,584.22
5 11.04
4 130.60 137.84

6 3,623,99 3.029,43
7 403.33 403.33
8 331.60 110.88

13,846,82 13,265.70

9 3.17170 4.225.85

10 6,953.72 5.923.77
11 1.386.74 1.624.40
12 242.84 69.00
13 80.15 83.90
14 894.22 895.05
15 75.20 61.41
16 289.56 298.68

13,094,13 13,182.06
26,940.95 26,447.76

17 402.28 402.28
18 24,118,86 23033.40

24,521.14 23,435.68

---~--- ..----------

Balance Sheet as at March 31 2023
(All amounts are In INR l.akhs. unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-cumtnt assets
Property. plant and equipmenl
capilal WOI1Iinprogress
RighI of use assel
Financiat assets
Investments
Loans
Other financial assets

Total non-cumtnt assets
Cumtnt assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances olhef than above
Loans and advances

Other ClJmHllassets
CUmHll tax assets (nel)
Totat cumtnt assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND UABILmES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity

Llabllltte$
Non-cumtnt liabilities
Financialliabililies
Borrowings 19
Lease Liability 20
Other financial liabilities 21

Deferred Tax Liabilities (nel) 22
Long Term Provisions 23
Other non ClJmHllliabilities 24
Total non-cumtnt liabilities

Cumtnt liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 25
Lease Liability 26
Trade payables 27

(a) tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b) total outstanding dues of credilOls other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Olhef ClJrrenlfinancialllabUlties 28
Other ClJrrentliabilities 29
Total cumtnt liabilities

Total liabilities
Total EqUity and Liabilities

223.45 428.31
23.00 28.88
3.96 3.59

945.04 889.89
133.24 131.35
80.73 90.19

1,409.42 1,572.21

160,06 202.93
5,88 5.32

9.94 8.28
545,21 902.37

2.28 2.94
287.02 318.03

1,010.39 1,439.87

2,419.81 3,012.08
26.940.95 26,447.76

The accompanying notes 101m an integral part of lhe financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T. Kannan
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00040674

RM. Somasundaram
Director
DIN: 00071510

AN, Paramaslvam
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Kappalur, Madurai
Date: May 3, 2023

S. Paramaslvam
Company Secrelary

As per our report of even dale attaclled
FOf CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartenad Accountants
(Firm Registration No.004915S1S200036)

ChlnllSll1lY GlntSln
Partner

Membership No.027501



Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

From continuing operations
A Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

B Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade
and finished goods
Employee Benefits Expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

C Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items

D Profit before tax from continuing operations
Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax chargel (credit)

Profit for the year

E Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations
Fair value gain on equity instruments
Income tax adjustment relating to these items

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive Income for the year

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

[VTM L1MITI£~

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

30 20,872.42 19,374.50
31 578.20 516.10

21,450.62 19,890.60

32 14,585.96 14,224.44

33 743.51 (932.19)
34 1,274.80 1,201.94
35 82.36 105.23
36 980.51 920.22
37 2,551.23 2,565.24

20,218.37 18,084.88

1,232.25 1,805.72

1,232.25 1,805.72

33141 459.27
(12.99) (142.28)

913.83 1,488.73

540 5.65
596.42 302.11
(68.14) (28.75)

533.68 279.01

1,447.51 1,767.74

2.27
2.27

3.70
3.70

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T. Kannan
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00040674

RM. Somasundaram
Director
DIN: 00071510

AN. Paramasivam
Chief Financial Officer

S. Paramasivam
Company Secretary

Place: Kappalur, Madurai
Date: May 3, 2023

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration NO.004915SI S200036)

Chinnsamy Ganesan
Partner

Membership No 027501
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For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1,232.25 1,805.72

980.51 920.22
(48.96) (88.42)
(24.13) (40.93)
(13.96) (13.96)
82.36 105.23

(303.09) (256.63)
(6.18)

(23.51) (13.29)
(85.05) (49.12)

13.67
1,790.24 2,382.49

7.01 (1383)
(220.72) (29.90)
(13.79) 80.21

1,054.15 (1,803.60)
237.66 93.46
(24.84) (231.81)

(355.50) 739.29
2,474.21 1,216.31
(322.29) (505.77)

2151.92 710.54

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation expense
(Profit)/ Loss on sale of p-operty, plant and equipment
(Profit)/ Loss on sale of irvestments
Deferred Income from go"ernment grants
Finance costs
Fair value changes of invesfments considered in the profit and loss
Provisions no longer reqLired written back
Interest income
Dividend income
Allowance on expected credit loss

Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/ decrease in loans and advances
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/ decrease in other assets
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions and other liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables

Cash generated from operations
Less: Income taxes paid (ne: of refunds)
Net cash from operating activities (A)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of PPE and changes in CWIP (net of government grants)
Sale proceeds of PPE (including compensation from government)
(Purchase)/ disposal proceeds of Investments (non-current)
(Purchase)! disposal proceecs of Investments (current)
(Investments in)/ Maturity of fixed deposits with banks
Dividend income
Interest income
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

(791.44)
9406
1.86

(702.73)
3.75

85.05
23.51

(1,285.94)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from! (repayment of) long term borrowings
Finance costs
Dividend paid
Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities (C)

(247.73)
(82.36)

(362.05)
(692,14)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

173.84
69.00

242.84

(96.74)
165.74
69.00

Notes:
1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method psscnbeo in IndAS 7 "Cash Flow Statements".
2. Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
in current accounts

Cash on hand
240.37

2.47
242.84

(446.59)
104.80

2.29
167.10

3.12
49.12
13.29

(106.87)

(353.81)
(105.23)
(241.37)
(700,41)

67.12
1.88

69.00

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration NO.004915S! S200036)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

T. Kannan
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00040674

RM. Somasundaram
Director
DIN: 00071510

AN. Paramasivam
Chief Financial Officer
Place. Kappalur, Madurai
Date: May 3, 2023

S, Paramasivam
Company Secretary

Chinnsamy Ganesan
Partner

Membership NO.027501



Statement of Changes in Equity for lhe year ended March 31, 202::,
(All amounts are in Ir~R l.akhs. unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity Share Capital
Balance as at April 1,2021
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errc rs
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at the end of March 31, 2022
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at the end of March 31, 2023

402.28

402.28

402.28

Bl Other Equity
Particulars General Reserve .·.,·qtller Retained Total

Comprehensive Earnings
". Income

Balance as at April 1, 2021 17,576.66 2,599.40 1,330.97 21,507.03

Changes due to prior period errors
Dividend paid (241.37) (241.37)

Additions! (Deductions) during the year 500.00 (5.65) (494.35)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 279.01 1,488.73 1,767.74

Balance as at March 31, 2022 18,076.66 2,872.76 2,083.98 23,033.40

Changes due to prior period errors
Dividend paid (362.05) (362.05)

Additions! Deductions during the period (5AO) 5AO
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 533.68 913.83 1,447.51

Balance as at March 31, 2023 1£,076.66 3,401.04 2,641.16 24,118.86
The accompanying notes form an Integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration NO.004915SI S200036)

T. Kannan
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00040674

~M. Somasundaram
Jirector
JIN: 00071510

Chinnsamy Ganesan
Partner

Membership NO.027501

AN. Paramasivam
Chief Financial Officer

S. Paramasivam
::ompany Secretary

Place: Kappalur, Madurai
Date: May 3, 2023

ri~
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1 Corporate Information

VTM Limited was established in 1946 with the founding principles of setting standards in weaving
by ensuring that the best of weaving technology was always available. Today, the Company is
well-established with unique capabilities that allows to cater to exotic constructions in weaving.
It has also expanded the capabilities to include special weaves and combinations. 255 state-of­
the-art looms take pride of place in the manufacturing unit. 80 Sulzer machines, 06 Rapier leno

looms, 163Air jets and 06 Jacquard machines work in tandem to produce 1.7 million meters of
fabric every month. It is also equipped with adequate equipment to cater to special fabric

manufacturing in fine counts and complex specifications.

2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) under the historical cost convention on fie accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values, tl:e provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively

in current and future periods.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's
functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest

Lakhs (up to two decimals).
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Provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the
reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the
figure estimated at end of each reporting period.

2B Recent accounting pronouncements

New amendments issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting

standards, and are effective April 01, 2023.

Ind AS 101, First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

Paragraphs 15 and 24 ofIn::lAS 12, Income Taxes exempt an entity from recognising a deferred
tax asset or liability in particular circumstances. Despite this exemption, at the date of transition
to Ind ASs, a first-time adopter shall recognise a deferred tax asset-to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised-and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with: (a) right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and (b) decommissioning, restoration
and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the related

asset.

Ind AS 103, Business Combinations

The amendment to para 13 (b) of Appendix C to Ind AS 103 relating to Business combinations
of entities under common control requires the disclosure of the date on which the transferee
obtains control of the transferor instead of the present requirement of disclosure of the date on
which the transferor obtairs control of the transferee.

Ind AS 107, Financial Iastruments : Disclosures

The exiting para 21 of Ind AS 107 prescribes that in accordance with paragraph 117 of Ind AS
1, Presentation of Financial Statements, an entity discloses its significant accounting policies,
comprising the measurement basis (or bases) used in preparing the financial statements and the
other accounting policies. This has been substituted with "In accordance withparagraph 117
of Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, an entity discloses material accounting
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policy information. Information about the measurement basis (or bases) for financial
instruments used inpreparing thefinancial statements is expected to be material accounting
policy information. "

Similarly, the existing closing para of Para B5 of Appendix B which states that Paragraph 122 of
Ind AS 1 also requires entities to disclose, along with its significant accounting policies or other
notes, the judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that management has made in the
process of applying the entity's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statement was substituted with the following "Paragraph
122 of Ind AS 1 also requires entities to disclose, along with material accounting policy
information or other notes, the judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that
management has made in the process of applying the entity s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. "

Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

A new para was included to state that accounting policies are defined in paragraph 5 of Ind AS
8,Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, and the term is used in this
Standard with the same meaning. The amendment also substituted the words ''''significant
accounting policies" with "material accounting policy information" in Para 10 (e), in the heading
to Para 117 and Para 122 of Ind AS 1. Further, Para 117 of Ind AS 1 was substituted with "An
entity shall disclose material accounting policy irformation (see paragraph 7). Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other information included in an entity's
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

Para 117A to Para 117E were included to provide guidance on what is material and what is
immaterial accounting policy information.

Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The words in Para 5 ofInd AS 8 "Changes in accounting estimates result from new information
or new developments and, accordingly, are not corrections of errors" will be substituted with the
words "Accounting estimates are monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty"Para 32, Para 34, Para 38 and Para 48 of Ind AS 8 were also
amended consequent to t1,a changes in Para 5 as stated above. Para 32A and 32B were inserted
to give more guidance on the new definition of accounting estimate.

------- -



[VTM LIMITE~

Ind AS 12, Income taxes

A new clause (iii) has been added to state that no deferred tax liability shall be recognised to the
extent the taxable temporary difference does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences at the time of the transaction.

Consequent to the above modification, the existing clauses (b) and (c) of Para 22 of Ind AS 12
and clauses (b) and (c) of Para 24 of Ind AS 12 were substituted with new clauses and a new
Para 22A was added to prcvide more guidance in respect of initial recognition of an asset or

liability.

Consequential amendments were also made in line with the amendments made in Ind AS 101.

Ind AS 34, Interim Financial Reporting

Consequent to the amendment in Ind AS 1, in Para 5 (e) ofInd AS 24 for the words "significant
accounting policies", the wcrds "material accounting policy information" have been substituted.

The Company made an assessment of the possible impact of the above amendments, to the
extent applicable to the Company and concluded that the above amendments will not have any
material impact on the Co.rpany on a go forward basis.

3 SignificantAccountingPolicies

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non­

current classification,

An asset is treated as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
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All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is currentwhen:

i) It is expected to the settled in normal operating cycle

ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) It is due to be settledwithin twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operatingcycleis the timebetweenthe acquisitionof assetsforprocessingandtheirrealisation
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified 3 months as its operating cycle.

b) Fair value measurement

The Company has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at each reporting
period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participarr:s at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that .he transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability;

ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market ::nustbe accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability ismeasured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing r.ie asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

-----~ ------------------- .~-------- -- -
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and the best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
whichsufficientdataareavailabletomeasurefairvalue,maximizingtheuse ofrelevantobservable
inputs and minimising the r.seof unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities forwhich fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorizedwithin the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to be fair value measurement as a whole:

Levell: Quoted(unadusted) marketprices in activemarket for identicalassetsor liabilities;

Level 2 : Valuationtechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 : Valuationtechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Companyhas designatedthe respective team leads to determinethepolicies and procedures
for both recurring and non - recurring fair value measurement. External valuers are involved,
wherever necessary with the approval of Company's board of directors. Selection criteria
include market knowledge" reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy ES explained above. The componentwise fair value measurement is
disclosed in the relevant notes.

c) Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of gocds is recognised as and when the Company satisfies performance
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obligations by transferring control of the promised goods to its customers. The transaction price
is the amount of consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods to the customer. The Company does not have any non-cash consideration

Revenue is measured at the transaction price received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment. It comprises of invoice value of goods after deducting
discounts, volume rebates and applicable taxes 01: sale. Italso excludes value of self-consumption.

Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives short-term advances
from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it
expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised goods or
services to the customer and when the customer pays for that goods or services will be one year

or less.

Sale of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion

of the contract

Power Generation

Power generated from windmills that are covered under wheeling and banking arrangement
with the State Electricity Board! Electricity Distribution Companies are consumed at factories.
The monetary values of such power generated that are captively consumed are not recognised

as revenue.

Export entitlements

Export entitlements from Government authorities are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of
the exports made by the Company, and where tnere is no significant uncertainty regarding the

ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Sale of scrap

Scrap sale is recognised as and when the Company satisfies performance obligations by
transferring control of the promised goods to its customers. Revenue is measured at the transaction
price received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment. It
comprises of invoice value of goods after deducting discounts, and applicable taxes on sale
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Interest Income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Rental Income

Rental income from operat:.nglease is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease as per IndAS 116.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognizedwhen the company's right to receive dividend is establishedby
the reporting date, which is generallywhen shareholders approve the dividend.

d) Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

Presentation

Property,plant and equipment and capitalwork inprogress are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciationand accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying asset, if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet
date, are disclosed as capita. advances under long term loans and advances and the cost of the
tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital work
111 progress.

Component Cost

All material!significantcomponentshave been identified for ourplant and have been accounted
separately. The useful life of such component are analysed independently and wherever
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components are having different useful life other than plant they are part of, useful life of
components are considered for calculation of depreciation.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs
and maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Machinery spares/ insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of fixed
assets and their issue is expected to be irregular are capitalised. Replacement of such spares is
charged to revenue. Other spares are charged as revenue expenditure as and when consumed.

Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

e) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful
life on a written down value method. The depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset,
or other amount substituted for cost, less 5% being its residual value.

Depreciation is provided on straight line method, over the useful lives specified in Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated or; pro-rata basis from the date of such additions.
For deletion! disposals, the depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the date on which
such assets have been discarded/ sold. Additions to fixed assets, costing Rs.5,000 each or less
are fully depreciated retaining its residual value.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

1) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Costs are determined on weighted average method as follows:

------ ----- . - ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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(i) Raw materials, packing materials and consumables: At purchase cost including
othercostincurredinoringingmaterialslconsumablesto theirpresentlocationandcondition.

(ii) Work-in-process and intermediates: At material cost, conversion costs and appropriate
share of production overheads

(iii) Finished goods: At materialcost, conversioncosts and an appropriateshareof production
overheads.

g) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset are also added to the cost of the financial asset. Purchases or
salesof financialassetsthatrequiredeliveryof assetswithina time frameestablishedby regulation
or convention in the marke: place (regularway trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified on the basis of their
contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity's business model of managing them.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

• Debt instruments at amortised cost

• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

• Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

• Equity instrumentsmeasuredat fairvalue throughothercomprehensiveincome(FVTOCI)
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Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Company classifies a debt instrument as at amortised cost, if both the following conditions
are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPP[I on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interestrate (EIR)method.Amortisedcost iscalculatedby taking intoaccountany discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance incorre in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

The Company classifies a debt instrument at FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the businessmodel is achievedboth by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments includedwithin the FVTOCI category are measured as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
However, the Company recognizes finance income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss statement.On derecognition of the asset, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss.
Interest earnedwhilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

The Company classifies all debt instruments,wh.ch do not meet the criteria for categorizationas
at amortized cost or as F\ TOCI, as at FVTPL

Debt instrumentsincludedwithin the FVTPLcategoryaremeasuredat fairvaluewith all changes
recognized in the profit and loss.
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Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. Where the Company makes an irrevocable
election of classifying the equity instruments at FVTOCI, it recognises all subsequent changes
in the fair value in OCI, without any recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even
on sale of such investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose contractual
terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represents SPPI, are measured as detailed
below depending on the business model:

Classification Name of the financial asset

Amortised cost Trade receivables, Loans given to employees and others, deposits, interest
receivable, unbilled revenue and other advances recoverable in cash.

FVTOCI Equity investments in companies other than subsidiaries and associates if
an option exercised at the time of initial recognition.

FVTPL Other investments in equity instruments, mutual funds, forward exchange
contracts (to the extent not designated as a hedging instrument).

Derecognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
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and rewards ofthe asset, nor transferredcontrol cfthe asset, the Companycontinuesto recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the
Companyalso recognisesan associatedliability.The transferredasset and the associatedliability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights end obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvementthat takes the form of a guaranteeover the transferred asset ismeasured
at the lowerof the originalcarryingamountof the assetandthemaximumamountof consideration
that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognitionof impairment loss on the followingfinancial assets and credit risk
exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.,
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCI

c) Trade receivables or any contractual righ: to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

• Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

• All lease receivables resulting from transactionswithin the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach dces not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12months ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss.However, if credit risk has increased significantly,lifetimeECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-monthECL.
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company
considers all contractual ter::ns of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument and Cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECL allowance (or reversa.) recognized during the period is recognized as income! expense in
the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the
profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation of ECL for various financial instruments is

described below:

• Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables
and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, which reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment

allowance from the gross carrying amount.

• Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected
at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL
amount is presented as 'accumulated impairment amount' in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on

a timely basis.

For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at
each reporting date. Other financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share
similar credit risk cnaracteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done on the

following basis:
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Narne of the financial asset Impairment Testing Methodology

j

Trade Receivables

Other financial assets

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied-The ECL
over lifetime of the assets are estimated by usinga provision
matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions which are grouped on the basis of similar credit
characteristics such as nature of industry, customer
segment, past due status and other factors that are relevant
to estimate the expected cash loss from these assets.

When the credi.risk has not increased significantly, 12month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. When there is
significant change in credit risk since initial recognition, the
impairment is measured based on probability of default over
the life time. If in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based

on 12 month EeL.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL and as at

amortised cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.
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The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at FYTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit
risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss.
However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes
in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has
not designated any financia. liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, in.erest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and lo~ses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and
options contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.
The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

Derivatives fair valued through profit or loss

This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic
perspective, they may not qualify for hedge accounting under IndAS 109, Financial Instruments.
Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per
IndAS 109, is categorized as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or

loss.
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Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable
transaction costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or
loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in other income. Assets I liabilities
in this category are presented as current assets I current liabilities if they are .either held for
trading or are expected to be realized within 1=. months after the Balance Sheet date.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability 15 replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments
and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is
made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines
change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to
the Company's operations. Such changes are evicent to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins 0:- ceases to perform an activity that is significant
to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting
period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

S.No Original Revis-ed Accounting treatment
classification classification

1 Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in the profit or loss

2 FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
gross carrying amount. ErR is calculated based on
the new gross carrying amount.

3 Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and
fair value is recognised in OCr. No change in EIR
due to reclassification.

4 FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
amortised cost carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if
it had always been measured at amortised cost.

5 FVTPL FVTCCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.

6 FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCl is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet,
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset.the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

h) Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency
spot rates at the date at which the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical
reasons, the Company uses an average rate, if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of

the transaction.
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Monetary assets and liabilitiesdenominated in foreigncurrencies are translated at the functional
currencyspot rates of exchangeat the reporting date.Exchangedifferencesarising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terns of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined.The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

The Company enters into forward exchange ccntract to hedge its risk associated with Foreign
currency fluctuations. The premium or discount arising at the inception of a forward exchange
contract is amortized as expense or income over the life of the contract. In case of monetary
items which are covered by forward exchange contract, the difference between the year end
rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference. Any profit or
loss arising on cancellation of a forward exchange contract is recognized as income or expense
for that year.

i) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost include interest computedusing Effective Interest Rate method, amortisation
of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset which takes substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use. The Company determines the amount of borrowing cost
eligible for capitalisationby applyingcapitalisaton rate to the expenditureincurredon such cost.
The capitalisation rate is determined based on the weighted average rate of borrowing cost
applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are outstanding during the period, other
than borrowings made specifically towards ptrchase of the qualifying asset. The amount of
borrowing cost that the Company capitalises during the period does not exceed the amount of
borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other borrowings costs are expensed in the
period in which they OCLui.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditureon qualifyingassets is deducted fro::nthe borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they are incurred

j) Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income

k) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where

the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either inocr or directly inequity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the

reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Where there is deferred tax assets arising from
carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax created, they are recognised to the extent of

deferred tax liability.



[VTM L1MITE~

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Lnrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at .he reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either inOCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

I) Retirement and other employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Defined contribution plans

Retirementbenefit in the formofprovident fund is a definedcontributionscheme.The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company
recognizes contributionpayable to the provident fund scheme as an expense,when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
schemeis recognizedas a liabilityafterdeductingthe contributionalreadypaid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-paymentwill lead to, for example,
a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to

------- - -- ---- -------- - -- ----------------



be made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

As per the policy of the Company, compensated absences are not entitled to be carried forward
to the subsequent financial year and lapse at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, no
liability towards compensated absences are recognised in these financial statements.

Other long term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of
services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.

m) Leases

As a lessee

a) Initial measurement

Lease liability is initially recognised and measured at an amount equal to the present value
of minimum lease payments during the lease term that are not yet paid. Right-of-use
asset is recognized an::imeasured at cost, consisting of initial measurement oflease liability
plus any Jease payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received, initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs

incurred by the lessee.

b) Subsequent measurement

The lease liability it"measured in subsequent periods using the effective interest rate
method. Right-of-use asset is depreciated in accordance with requirements in Ind AS 16,

Property, Plant and equipment.
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As a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received
under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of
a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment in the lease.

n) Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset-may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's ICGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

0) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the Timevalue of money is material, using pre-tax
rates that reflects the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, an increase in the
provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These provisions are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Necessary provision
for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made, if realisation of money is doubtful in the judgement of
the management.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the con,trol of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent

----- ------- --- . - - - -- -- -------------------------------------
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liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are disclosed separately.

Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for evaluation of
contingent liabilities only waen converted into demand.

Contingent assets

Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description of
the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an
estimate of their financial effect. Contingent assets are disclosed but not recognised in the
financial statements.

p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hend and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short­
term balances with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into cast, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

q) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments.

Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity's cash management,
bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
Cash flow statement.

r) Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at
a later date. Dilutive potertial equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for
bonus shares, as appropriate.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) As at

March 31,2023
As at

March 31, 2022
5 Capital Work-in-progress

Capital work in progress 11.04
11.04

Refer Note No.49 (a) for information relating to ageing schedule of Capital Work-in-progress

6 Non-current investments
Investment In other companies at FVTOCI
Quoted
Multi Commodity Exchangeof India Ltd [69 (previous year 69) equity shares of INR 10
each fully paid]

Unquoted'
Thiagarajar Mills Private Limited
[70,140 (previous year: 70,140) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid]
Colour Yarns Private Limited
[106,000 (previous year 106,000) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid]
Integrated Hi"Tech Limited
[1,800 (previous year 1,800) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid]
TelesysSoftware Limited
[19,000 (previous year 19,000) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid]
SIMATextile ProcessingCentre LId
[19,840 (previous year 19,840) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid]
OPG Power Generation PvtLtd
[Nil (previous year 16,000) equity shares oft-JR 10 each fully paid]

1.05 0.98

3,600.72 3,005.63

16.51 15.39

0.19 0.19

3.54 3.42

1.98 1.98

1.84

3,029.433,623.99
7 Non-current Loans (at amortised cost)

Unsecured" considered good
Other Loans
Loanswhich have significant increase in c.edit risk
Loans" Credit impaired

403.33 403.33

403.33
Note :The Company has not granted any 103nor advance in the nature of loan to promoters, directors,
KMPs and other related parties that are repa,able on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

403.33

8 Other non-current financial assets
Unsecured" considered good
Security deposits
Bank Deposits (Maturing after 12 months from end of the reporting period)
Others
CapitalAdvances
Loans and receivableswhich have Significantincrease in credit risk
Loans and receivables" coeditimpaired

122.20 103.03
2.95 2.78

20645 5.07

331.60 110.88

1,176.84 1,401.27

575.52 658.92
176.59 72.82

1,088.00 1,851.50
0.98 1.36

153.76 239.97
0.01 0.01

3,171.70 4,225.85

G

9 Inventories
Raw Materials" Yarn
Work"in"progress
Yarn
Cloth

Finished Products
Cloth
Waste

Stores and spares
Loose tools

* L&&L1 U loNg
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10 Current Investments
Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss
Investment in Mutual Funds- Quoted
Nippon India Ultra Short Duration Fund
ICICI Prudential Asset Allocator Fund
ICICI Prudential Equity Savings Fund Direct Growth
ICICI Prudential Corporate credit Opportunities Fund AIF
Nippon India Ultra Low Duration Fund
Nippon India Low Duration Fund- Growth Plan
ICICI Prudential Ultra Short Term- Direct Growth
Nippon India Balance Advantage Fund
ICICI All Seasons Bond Fund
ICICI Prudential Floating Rate Direct Growth
Absl Money Manager Fund
Nippon India Liquid Fund
Invesco India Arbitrage Fund

11 Trade receivables
Secured· considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivable which have sign ficant increase in credit risk
Trade recevables - credit impaired

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Note:
Trade receivables are neither due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly
with any other person, nor any trade or other receivables are due from frrns or private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Refer Note No. 50 for information about risk profile of Trade Receivatles under Financial Risk
Management. Refer Note No. 49 (bl for the Ageing Schedule of Trade Receivabes

12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand
Balances with Banks
. In current accounts

13 Other bank balances
In ear-marked accounts
- Unpaid dividend accounts

14 Current financial assets- Loans and Advances
Unsecured - considered good
Balances with government authorities
Security Deposits
Loans and advances - other than related parties
Loans and advances which have significant increase in credit risk
Loans and advances credit impaired

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Note :The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loen to promoters, directors,
KMPs and other related parties that are repayable on demand or without speciiying any terms or period of
repayment.

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

362.39
203.48
731.45
544.25

371.68
186.81
688.62
199.99
354.72
104.60
52.22

431.57
3,481.23

52.33
2,415.37

356.33
154.53

2,185.92

5,923.776,953.72

1,386.74 1,624.40

11.42 11.42

1,635.82
(11.42)

1,398.16
(11.42)

1,624.401 386.74

2.47 1.88

240.37 67.12
69.00242.84

80.15 83.90
80.15 83.90

869.75 869.24
9.63

14.84 25.81

8.37 14.55
902.59 909.60
(837) (14.55)

894.22 895.05
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

15 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance to suppliers 29.57 24.24
Prepaid expenses 41.59 37.17
CSR excess spent carried forward 4.04

75.20 61.41

16 Current tax assets
Advance income tax (net of provision for tax) 289.56 298,68

289.56 298.68
17 Capital

Authorised Share Capital
10,00,00,000 (Previous year 10,00,000) Equit~ shares of Re. 1 each 1,000.00 1,000,00

1,000.00 1,000.00

Issued Share Capital
4,02,27,600 (Previous year 4,02,27,600) EquiTyshares of Re. 1 each 402.28 402.28

402.28 402.28

Subscribed and fully paid up share capital
4,02,27,600 (Previous year 4,02,27,600) Equiry shares of Re. 1 each 402.28 402.28

402.28 402.28
Notes:

1) Reconciliation of number of equity shares subscribed
Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 4,02,27,600 4,02,27,600

2) The Company has no Holding or Subsidiary Conpanies.
3) During the last five years immediately precednq the date of Balance Sheet, the Company has neither issued any shares as bonus shares nor for

consideration other than cash and has not boug-t back any shares.
4) Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect 0' equity shares issued by the Company
(a) The company has issued only one class of equiy shares having a par value of Re. 1 each. The equity shares of the company having par value of Re.1/­

rank pari-passu in all respects including voting rghts and entitlement to dividend.
(b) The Company declares dividend on equity shares. In the event of declaration of interim dividend, the same is as per the decision of the Board of

Directors. Final dividend is proposed by Boare of Directors and approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting, The
directors have recommended a dividend of INR 0.70 per equity share of INR 1 each for the year ended March 31, 2023 (INR 0.90 per equity share of
INR 1 each for the year ended March 31,2022, Nhich has been approved by the shareholders and paid.)

(c) In the event of liquidation, shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be proportionate to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

5) Shareholders holdinq more than 5% of the talal share capital
Name of the share holder March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

No. of shares held % of holding No. of shares %of
held holding

TKannan, Partner, Guruvayoorappan Investmer:s 75,20,000 18.69% 75,20,000 18.69%
TKannan, Partner,Avittam Investments 75,00,000 18.64% 75,00,000 18.64%
TKannan, Partner, Karumuttu Investments 61,90,000 15.39% 61,90,000 15.39%
Mis. Fhisoaralar Mills Private Limited 26,78,000 6.66% 26,78,000 6.66%



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

TKannan, Partner, Guruvayoorappan Investments
TKannan, Partner,Avitlam Investments
TKannan, Partner, Karumuttu Investments
Mis, Thiagarajar Mills Private Limited
TKannan, Partner,Thirumagallnvestments
Sree Thiagaraja Finance Private Limited
Sree Devi Karumari Finance Private Limited
Ms ' Radha Kannan
Mr,TKannan
MrX Thiagarajan

75,20,000
75,00,000
61,90,000
26,78,000
18,28,000
15,04,000
13,36,300
8,74,200
5,85,600
1,53,600

18,64% Nil
15,39% Nil
6,66% Nil
4,54% Nil
3,74% Nil
3,32% Nil
2,17% Nil
1,46% Nil
0.38% Nil

[VTM LIMITE~

18 Other Equity
General Reserve
Other Comprehensive Income
Profit and LossAccount

a) General resenve
Balance at the beg nning of the year
Additions during the year
Balance at the end of the year

General Reserve represents the reserve created in accordancewith CompaniesAct, 2013 by transferring a
portion of profit of the year, This is a free reserve and the Company can use it for declaration of dividends,
subject to the conditions prescribed by the CompaniesAct, 2013.
b) Other comprehensive income

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
DeductionslAdjustments during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Other comprehensive income represents the balance in equity for items to be accounted in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI), The Company has opted to recognise the changes in the fair value of
certain investments in equity instruments and remeasurement of defined besefit obligations in OCL The
Company transfers the amounts recognised in OCI to the Retained Earning;, except in the case of fair
value recognition of equity instruments, The effect of fair valuation of equity insruments. including the profit
on sale of such investments will be recognised in OCI and will be transferred to retained earnings only
when the respective equily instruments are derecognised.

c) Profit and loss account
Balance at the beginning of the year
Net profit for the year
Final dividend paid
Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income
Transfer to General Reserve
Balance at the end of the year

Profit and Loss account represent the undistributed profits of the Company remaining after transfer to other
Reserves, This is a free reserve and the Company can use it for declaration of dividends, subject to the
conditions prescribed by the CompaniesAct, 2013,

19 Non-Current Llabilities- Financial Liabilities: Borrowings
Secured
From Banks"
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 25)

Note: The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutons for the specific purpose
for which it was taken as at the reporting date.
Registration, Modification and Satisfaction of charges relating to the year unde. review, had been filed with
the ROC,within the prescribed time or within the extended time requiring the payment of additional fees

As at
March 31, 2023

18,076,66
3,401.04
2,641.16

24,118.86

18,076,66

18,076.66

2,872.76
533,68
(5,40)

3,401,04

2,083,98
913,83
(362,05)

5,40

2,641.16

383,51
(160,06)

223.45

As at
March 31, 2022

18,076,66
2,872.76
2,083,98

23,033.40

17,576,66
500,00

18,076.66

2,599,40
279,01
(5,65)

2,872.76

1,330.97
1,488,73
(241,37)

5,65
(500,00)
2,083.98

631.24
(202,93)

428.31
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

** Terms of loan and security details

1) Term loan - I availed from Exim Bank of India by securing first charge on the specific assets procured under ATUF Scheme - repayable in 5 years on half
yearly basis, commencing from December 2016, The loan has been fully repaid during the previous year,

2) Term loan - " availed from Exim Bank of India b!' securing first charge on the specific assets procured under ATUF Scheme - repayable in 5 years on half
yearly basis, commencing from September 201& This loan has been fully repaid during the year.

3) Term loan -I availed from HDFC Bank by securng first charge on the specific assets procured under ATUF Scheme - repayable In 5 years on quarterly
basis, commencing from December 2019.

4) Term 10<ln • " availed from HOFe Bank by secunng first charge on the speclflc assets procured u1der ATUF seherne . repayable in 5 years on half yearly
basis, commencing from February 25, 2021.

5) Term loan - III availed from HDFC Bank by secU'lng first charge on the speclflc assets procured under ATUF Scheme - repayable in 5 years on quarterly
basis, commencing from August 15, 2020.

20 Lease Liability
Lease Liability 23.00 28.88

23.00 28.88

21 Other non-current financial liabilities
Lease rent advance 3.96 3.59

3.96 3.59

22 Deferred Tax Liability
On fixed assets 481.71 554.40
Remeasurement of financial assets 504.18 380,81

985.89 935.21
Deferred Tax Asset
Gratuity 39.83 45.37

On others 1,02 (0.05)

40.85 45.32

Net deferred tax liability 945,04 889.89

945.04 889.89
23 Long term Provisions

Provision for gratuity 133.24 131.35
133.24 131.35

24 Other non current liabilities
Deferred Income from government grant 6.99
Lease prepayment liability 8073 83.20

80.73 90.19

25 Short Term Borrowings
Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 19) 160.06 202.93

160.06 202.93

26 Lease Liability
Lease Liability 5.88 5.32

5.88 5.32

27 Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises an::! small enterprises 9.94 8.28
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than -nlcro enterprises and small enterprises 545.21 902.37

555.15 910.65
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

28 Other current financial liabilities
Security Deposits 2.28 2.13
Forward Contract Payable 0.81

2.28 2.94

29 Other current liabilities
Creditor for capital goods 7.46 7.67
Unpaid dividends 80.15 83.90
Statutory dues payable 28.84 25.32
Employee payables 74.34 91.50
Advance from Customers 44.24 35.68
Remuneration payable to Chairman and MD 45.00 60.00
Deferred Income from Government Grant 6.99 13.96

287.02 318.03
30 Revenue from operations

Sale of Products
Cloth 20,404.66 18,631.86
Yarn and cloth waste 175.62 327.84

20,580.28 18,959.70
Sale of Services
Conversion Charges 71.45
Stiching Charges 5.01 1.52

Other Operating Revenue
Foreign exchange gain (net) 49.83 84.43
Duty drawback 61.97 69.94
Incentive for export sales 175.33 187.46

20,872.42 19,374.50

31 Other income ;
Interest Income 23.51 13.29
Dividend Income 85.05 49.12
Income on fair valuation of investment in mutual funds 303.09 256.63
Profit on sale of fixed assets 48.96 88.42
Profit on sale of Investments 24.13 40.93
Income from government grant 13.96 13.96
Other non operating income 79.50 53.75

578.20 516.10



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

32 Cost of materials consumed - Yarn
Opening stock 1,401.27 611.53
Add: Purchases 14,361.53 15,014.18
Less: Closing Stock (1,176.84) (1,401.27)

14,585.96 14,224.44

33 Change$ In lnventerles of work-ln-progre$s, stock In trade and finished good$

Opening stock of
Work-In-progress
Yarn 658.92 444.30
Cloth in Process 72.82 71.23

Finishedgoods
Cloth 1,851.50 1,135.65
Waste 1.36 1.23

2,584.60 1,652.41
Closing stock of
Work-in-progress
Yarn 575.52 658.92
Cloth in Process 176.59 72.82

Finishedgoods
Cloth 1,088.00 1,851.50
Waste 0.98 1.36

1,841.09 2,584.60

(Increase)! Decrease in inventories 743.51 (932.19)

34 Employee benefits expense
Salariesandwages 1,050.60 1,005.66
Contributionto providentand other funds 81.10 75.67
Staffandworkmenwelfareexpenses 143.10 120.61

1,274.80 1,201.94

35 Finance Cost
Intereston term loans 43.01 60.37
Otherborrowingcosts 39.35 44.86

82.36 105.23

36 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciationof property,plantandequipment 973.27 912.98
Depreciationof rightof useasset 7.24 7.24

980.51 920.22
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

37 Other expenses
Power and fuel 874.62 768.54
Consumption of stores and spare parts 472.12 519.97
Bleaching and Processing charges· Cloth 145.08 90.61
Rent 9.70 8.40
Repairs to buildings 76.02 60.70
Repairs to machinery 16399 159.88
Insurance 39.62 39.94
Rates and taxes 37.00 30.89
Payment to Auditors
• for Statutory Audit and Limited review 7.25 7.25
• for Reimbursement of expenses 0.14 0.18
Selling expenses 271.72 355.96
Brokerage expenses 202.32 249.84
Corporate social responsibility expenditure refer Note 37 (a) 22.41 40.83
Legal and Professional charges 50.74 37.97
Directors sittings fees and travelling expenses 2.51 2.29
Commission to Chairman and Managing Director 45.00 60.00
Allowance for expected credit loss 13.67
Travelling and conveyance expenses 74.72 59.67
Miscellaneous expenses 56.27 58.65

2,551.23 2,565.24

37 (a) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

(i) Gross amount required to be spent on CSR expenditure in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 2509 23.78
read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

(ii) Amount unspenU(excess spent) carried forward from earlier years (2.68) 14.37
(iii) Amount actually spent during the year on

a) Promotion of Education 25.94 40.83
b) Others 0.51

26.45 40.83

(iv) (Excess amount spent carried forward)/ Short fall (4.04) (2.68)

(v) The details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure are furnished in t..oteNO.51
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

38 Income tax expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax
Current tax on profits for the yea,

Total current tax expense

331.41 459.27

331.41 459.27

(12.99) (142.28)

(12.99) (142.28)

318.42 316.99

1,232.25 1,805.72

310.13 454.46

5.64 5.98
15.64 (1.17)

331.41 459.27

Deferred tax
Deferred tax adjustments

Total deferred tax expense! (benefit)

Income tax expense

b) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax from continuing operations

Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% (Previous year: 25.168%)
Effect of expenses! (income) that are treated differently for tax purposes
CSR Expenditure
Others

Income tax expense

c) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax
Remeasurement of defined beneficobligation and e(JJityinstruments (68.14) (28.75)

(6814) (28,75)Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

d) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2023

Property, plant, and equipment
Expenses allowable on payment basis under the income Tax Act
Remeasurement of financial instruments
Others

Total

Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2022

Property, plant, and equipment
Expenses allowable on payment basis under the InoomeTax Act
Remeasurement of financial instruments
Others
Total

UK. ';;$144 ; =2$ 4$ :W';_ii\4&lMQWM,iQi$2UA.%MQ'¢1W¥;M,,¢dU;:.JQ£ (u;z;n;:;;;;m_.,;G;JjiM$I#;:;;$U
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

39 Earnings per share
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 913.83 1,488.73
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 4,02,27,600 4,02,27,600
Basic earnings per share (INR) 2.27 3.70
Diluted earnings per share (INR) 2.27 3.70

40 Earnings in foreign currency
FOB value of exports 4,178.49 4,794.96

41 Expenditure in foreign currency (net of withholding tax)
Commission 53.76 30.10
Selling expenses 44.86 79.34
Other expenses 1.80

98.62 111.24

42 Value of Imports calculated on C.I.F basis
Components and spare parts 38.84 56.67
Capital goods 489.91 27.34

528.75 84.01

Yea- ended March 31, 2023 .

43 Value of imported and indigenous Raw Materials and Stores and Spares consumed during the financial year and the percentage of
each to the total consumption

Year ended March 31, 2022
In INR lakhs Percentage (%)In IIIIR Lakhs Percentage (%)

Value of raw materials consumed
Imported
Indigenous 14,585.96 100.00 100.0014,224.44

14,585.96 100.00 14,224.44 100.00
Value of Stores and Spares Consumed
Imported
Indigenous

38.84
433.28

8.23
91.77

10.90
89.10

56.67
463.30

100.00472.12

44

Contingent Liabilities"
Tax Demands and PFArrears under dispute
Electricty peak hour penality dispute
Income tax demands
Bills discounted
Bank Guarenteesl Letter of Credits

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remainin to be executed on ca ital accounts and not rOoJidedfor

519.97 100.00

As a!
March 31, 2022

62.37
3.80

325.17
735.57

1.61

123.19

62.37
3.80

325.17
988.49

1.61

•• The management believes, based on internal assessment and I or legal advice, that be probability of an ultimate adverse decision and outflow of resources of the
company is not probable and accordingly, no provision for the same is considered necessary.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the-year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

45

(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the enc of the year
(b) The delayed payments of principal amount paid bsyond the appointed date during the year
(c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMECAct
(d) Normal Interest due and payable during the year, lor delayed payments, as per the agreed terms
(e) Total interest accrued during the year and remairl,g unpaid

9.94 8.28

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

46 Operating Segments
The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of "Textiles" and therefore, has only cne reportable segment in accordance with Ind AS 108 'Operating
Segments'.

Information relating to geographical areas

a) Revenue from external customers

.

16,361.44
4.218.84

13,979.63
4.980.07

·d"'~Uldl. Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

India
Rest of the world
Total 20580.28 18,959.70

(b) Non current assets
The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situ;rted in India and no non-current assets are held outside India.

cllnformation about major customers
Particulars >:

••••••••••

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Number of external customers each contributing male than 10%of total revenue 3 4
Total revenue from the above customers 2.799.04 2,922.38

47 Leases
As Lessor
The Company has entered inlo operating lease arr<ngements for certain surplus facilities. The leases are non cancellable and may be renewed based on mutual
agreement of the parties.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Total lease income recognised in the Statement of P'ofit and Loss 1.00 1.00

Undiseounted lease payments to be received
Within 5 years 5.00 5.00
Later than 5 years 27.68 28.68

As Lessee
The Company has entered into both operating lease arrangements and finance lease arrangements for certain facilities. Some leases are non cancellable at the
option of either party to lease and others are cancelable at the option of the lease. The Lease may be renewed based on mutual agreement of the parties.

~ Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets accomtec for applying para 6 of lnd AS 116 9.70 8.40
Right of use asset as on tile opening date 137.84 145.08

Additions during the year
Depreciation charge for the year 7.24 7.24

Closing balance of Right of use asset 130.60 137.84

Total Cash outflow for finance lease arrangements 9.70 8.40
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e etai SO overnment rants received ~y t e ompanv are as 0 ows
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Duty drawback on exports 61.97 69.94
Interest subventon of export finance 5.27 16.08
ATUF - Subsidy for garment Unit 36.74 50.96
Capital Grant - ATUF subsidy for machinery purchased 52.16

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

48 Government Grants

Th d I fG G b h C f II

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to government assstance that has been recognised in the financial statements.

The company has opted for deferred income. Accordingly, government grant is credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected life of the related
asset and presented within other income. In respect of capital grant towards specific asset, the same is adjusted in the carrying amount of the related asset as
required by IndAS 20.

49 Additional regulatory and other information as required by the Schedule III to the CompaniesAct ;;~13

lal Ageing Schedule of Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP)- March 2023

Particulars Amount In CWIPfor a period of
Lessthan 1 1-2years 2-3years Morethan 3

yea vears
(i) Projects in Progress
(iii Projects temoorarily suspended

11.04

11.04

Note: The Company do not have any projects whose activity has been suspended.

Ageing Schedule of Capital Work-in-Progress (CW/P)- March 2022

Particulars Amount In CWIPfor a period of
Less than 1 1-2years 2-3years Merethan 3

year vears
(i) Projects in Progress
(ii) Projects temporarily suspended

Note: The Company do not have any projects whose activity has been suspended.

(b) Ageing Schedule of Trade Receivables
As at March 31 2023

Total

11.04

11.04

Total

,
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Notdue Less than 6 6 months to 1 1·2 years 2·3 years More than 3 Total
months year years

Undisputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered good 1,301.83 81.15 1.77 3.20 0.27 (1.48) 1,386.74
(ii) Which have Significant increase in credit
risk
(iii) Credit impaired 10.30 1.12 11.42

-
Disputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered good
(ii) Which have significant increase in credit
risk
iiijCredit impaired

1,301.83 81.15 1.77 3.20 10.57 (0.36) 1,398.16



[VTMLl~
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31 2022
Particulars Outstanding for foliowinQ periods from due date of oavment

Not due Less than 6 6 months to 1 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 Total
':; c',· > <". . months I ' vear years

Undisputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered good 916.46 693.47 1.46 1.56 ',1.45 1;624.40
(ii) Which have significant increase in credit
risk
(iii) Credit impaired 9.41 0.91 1.10 11.42

Disputed Trade Receivables
(i) Considered good
(ii) Which have significant increase in credit
risk
iii) Credit impaired - -

916.46 693.47 1.46 10.97 12.36 1.10 1635.82

(c) Ageing Schedule of TradePayables
Particulars Outstanding for followina nsriods from due date of payment

Not due Less than 1 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years

As at March 31,2023
(i). MSME 7.37 2.57 9.94
(ii) Others 450.88 65.28 17.26 11.79 545.21
(iii). Disputed Dues - MSME
(iv). Disputed Dues - Others
(v). Unbilled Dues

458.25 67.85 17.26 11.79 555.15
As at March 31, 2022
(i). MSME 8.28 8.28
(ii) Others 825.22 65.21 (0.57) 7.59 4.92 902.37
(iii). Disputed Dues - MSME -
(iv). Disputed Dues - Others
v). Unbilled Dues

833.50 65.21 (0.57 7.59 4.92 910.65

(d) Proceedings under the Benami Transactions (prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)and rules made thereunder
There are no proceedings initiated or are pendilg against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder

(e) Borrowings from banks
The Company has been sanctioned working captal limits in excess of five crore rupees. in aggregate. from banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets and the qJarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions
are in agreement with the books of account of lhe Company.

The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter ty any bank or financial Institution or other lenders.

m Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company did not have any transactions I'ith Companies struck off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956 considering the informatior available with the Company.

(g) Compliance with number of layers of compa",'es
The Company do not have any parent compari,' and accordingly, compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of
section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable for the year under consideration.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(h) Kev Financial Ratios
..... ~.20U-~!1_~te MarCe~O~~ Marcit2~ ,,,uati(min.%

; .... .. ;

Current Ratio In multiple 15.40 10.66 44%
Debt-Equity Ratio In multiple 0.02 0.03 (33%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio In multiple 6.75 6.13 10%
Return on Equitv Ratio In% 6.04% 7.80% (2%
Inventory Turnover Ratio In Davs 65.00 63.00 3%
Trade receivables Turnover Ratio In Days 26.00 31.00 (16%
Trade pavables Turnover Ratio In Days 13.00 10.00 30%
Net Capital Turnover Ratio In Days 78.00 84.00 (7%
Net Profit Ratio In% 4.38% 7.68% (3%
Return on Capital Employed In% 3.60% 5.47% (2%
Return on Investment (Assets) In% 4.62% 7.04% (2%

Formula adopted for above Ratios:
Current Ratio = Current Assets 1 (Total Current Liabilities - Security Depos ts payable on Demand - Current maturities of Long Term Debt)
Debt-Equity Ratio = Total Debt 1Total Equity
Debt Service Coverage Ratio = (EBITDA - Current Tax) 1 (Principal Repayment + Gross Interest on term loans)
Return on Equity Ratio = Total Comprehensive Income 1Average Total Equty
Inventory Turnover Ratio (Average Inventory days) = 3651 (Net Revenue 1Average Inventories)
Trade receivables Turnover Ratio (Average Receivables days) = 3651 (Ne~Revenue 1Average Trade Receivables)
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (Average Payable days) = 3651 (Net Revenue 1Average Trade payables)
Net Capital Turnover Ratio = (Inventory Turnover Ratio + Trade receivables turnover ratio - Trade payables)
Net Profit Ratio = Net Profit 1Net Revenue
Return on Capital employed = (Total Comprehensive Income + Interest) 1 (Average of (Equity + Total Debt))
Return on Investment (Assets) = Total Comprehensive Income 1Average TJtal Assets

Reasons for Variation if more than 25%
Current Ratio
The Company liquidated major portion of current liabilities during the year, which resulted in huge increase in current ratio.

Debt equity ratio
Major portion of the term loans has been repaid during the year and accordingly, the Debt Equity Ratio has decreased

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio
The yearend purchases of yarn resulted in temporary increase of trade payables which impacted the Trade Payable Turnover days.

(i) Scheme of arrangements
There are no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Autrority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013
during the year.

lj) Advance or loan or investment to intermediaries and receipt of funds from intermediaries
The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Intermediary shall (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest enother persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any gua-antee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The company has also not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Fuming Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otnerwise stated)

(k) Undisclosed Income
The Company do not have any transactbn which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income in the tax assessments under the ncome TaxAct, 1961 during any of the years.

(I) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual C.rrency
The Company did not trade or invest in Cr/pto Currency or virtual currency during the financial year. Hence, disclosures relating to it are not
applicable.

50 Financial Instruments
Capital management
The Company manages Its capital to ensure that enlitles In the Companywill be able to continue as going concern, while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Company determines the amount of capital requ red on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategic investment plans. The funding
requirements are met through equity, long term and snort-term borrowings.

For the purposes of the Company's capital rnanaqernent,capital includes issued capital and other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.

Categories of Financial Instruments
Financial assets
a. Measured at amortised cost

Loans (non-current)
Other non-currentfinancial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than above
Loans (current)

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

403.33 403.33
331.60 110.88

1,386.74 1,624.40
242.84 69.00
80.15 83.90
894.22 895.05

3,623.99 3,029.43

6,953.72 5,923.77

223.45 428.31
3.96 3.59

555.15 910.65
2.28 2.94

b. Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Investments (non-current)

c. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments(current)

Financial liabilities
a. Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings (non-current)
Other non-currentfinancial liabilities
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Derivative instruments

Financial risk management objectives
The treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks
relating to the operations through internal risk reportswhich analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and l'quidity risk.

The Company seeks to minimise the effects of thesa risks by using natural hedging financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is
governed by the Company's policies approved by the board of directors,which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, the use of financial derivatives, and the
investment of excess liquidity.The Company does no. enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments,for speculative purposes.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, ir realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The
Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company actively manages its
currency and interest rate exposures through its fmance division and uses derivative instruments such as forward contracts and currency swaps, wherever required, to
mitigate the risks from such exposures.The use of derivative instruments is subject to limits and regular monitoringby appropriate levels of management.

Foreign currency risk management
The Company undertakes transactions denominatedin foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Company actively manages
its currency rate exposures through a centralised treasury division and uses natural hedging principles to mitigate the risks from such exposures. The use of derivative
instruments, if any, is subject to limits and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of management.

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominatedmonetary assets and monetary liabilitiesat the end of the reporting period are as follows:
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As on March 31,2023 (all amounts are in equivalent in INR lakhs)

Particulars Liabilities Assets Net overall
exposure on

Gross Exposure Net liability Gross exposure Exposure Net asset the currency -
exposure hedged using exposure on hedged using exposure on net assets I

derivatives the currency derivatives the currency net liabilitiesJ

Trade receivables 317.40 317.40 317.40
Trade Payables 5.80 5.80 (5.80)

As on March 31, 2022 (all amounts are in equivalent in INR lakhs)

Particulars Liabilities Assets Net overall
exposure on

Gross Exposure Net Iicbility Gross exposure Exposure Net asset the currency -
exposure hedged using exposure on hedged using exposure on net assets I

derivatives the currency derivatives the currency ltnet liabilities)

Trade receivables 224.21 224.21 224.21
Trade Payables 25.11 - i5.11 (25.11)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
Movement in the functional currencies of the various operations of the Company acairst major foreign currencies may impact the Company's revenues from its
operations. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the Company's cost of imports and cost of borrowings and consequently may increase the cost of
financing the Company's capital expenditures. The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculateo for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate
exposure of a currency and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift in the foregn exchange rates of each currency by 2%. which represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 2% change in foreign currenC\' rates. The estimated sensitivity impact will be around +/- INR 7.47 lakhs
(Previous year Rs. 2.93 lakhs). which is considered to be immaterial to the size of operatbns of the Company.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk management
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrow funds at both fixed and fleating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an
appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings and by the use of interest rats SNap contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest
rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied. Further, in appropriate cases, the Company also effects changes in
the borrowing arrangements to convert floating interest rates to fixed Interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to intersst rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the end of the
reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 25 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

The 25 basis point interest rate changes will impact the profitability by INR 0.21 Lakhs for the year (Previous year INR 0.26 Lakhs)

Credit risk management
Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables anj from its financing/ investing activities, including deposits with banks, mutual
fund investments, investments in debt securities and foreign exchange transactions. The Conpany has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.



LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
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Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure is the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks,
short term deposits with banks, trade receivables, margin money and other financial assets excluding equity investments.

(a) Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of easterners. The Company has credit evaluation policy for each customer and, based on the evaluation, credit limit
of each customer is defined. Wherever the Company assesses the credit risk as high, the exposure is backed by either bank, guarantee/letter of credit or security deposits.

The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit
losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix b mitigate the risk of default in payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever
outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk.

(b) Investments, Derivative Instruments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank deposits
Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits wit1 the bankslfinancial institutions is generally low as the said deposits have been made with the bankslfinancial
institutions, who have been assigned high credit rating b7 international and domestic rating agencies.

Credit Risk on Derivative Instruments is generally low as the Company enters into the Derivative Contracts with the reputed Banks.

Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved Financiallnstitutions/Counterparty. Investments primarily include investment in units of quoted Mutual Funds.
These Mutual Funds and Counterparties have low credit risk. The Company has standard operating procedures and investment policy for deployment of surplus liquidity,
which allows investment in debt securities and mutual fund schemes of debt and arbitrage categories and restricts the exposure in equity markets.

Offsetting related disclosures
Offsetting of cash and cash equivalents to borrowings as per the loan agreement is available only to the bank in the event of a default. Company does not have the right
to offset in case of the counter party's bankruptcy, therefore, these disclosures are not required.

Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannd meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and
ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and mutual funds, which carry minimal mark to
market risks. The Company also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial flexibility.

Liquidity tables
The following tables detail the Company's remaining cmtractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash fiows of finanGialliabililies based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

Carrying
amount
383.51
555.15
938;66

Borrowings
Trade a abies

428.31

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured
at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required):

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Nil Nil
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51 Related party disclosure

a) List of parties having significant influence

Holding company The, Company does not have any holding company

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures The; Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Key Management Personnel and their Relatives
Sri lKannan
Dr,(Smt) Uma Kannan
Sri, K,Thiagarajan
Sri AN Paramasivam
Sri K.Deenadayalan
Sri A.N Paramasivam
Sri S Paramasivam

Charnan and Managing Director
Director
Director
Chief Financial Officer (from April 25, 2022)
Chief Financial Officer (till April 24, 2022)
General Manager (till April 24, 2022)
Conpany Secretary

Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel and their Relatives have significant influence
Thiagarajar Mills (P) Ltd.
Tamaraiselvi Finance (P) Ltd.
Kalaithanthai Karumuttu Thiagaraja Chettiar Memorial Charitable Trust
Colour Yarns Private Limited
Thiagarajar Rubbers Private Limited
Pacific Cotton LLC
Sivakami Textiles Private Limited
Kannappan Traders Private Limited
Thiagarajar College of Ar.s
Thiagarajar College Of Engineering
Murugan Security Services

Transactions with related parties are as follows

S.No ' ..I1""vuUIl"/ tlalances
, Enmrprises in which Key Key Management Personnel and

Malagement Personnel and their their Relatives
Relatives have signifICant influence

Niarch 31 2023 Match 31 2022 March 31 ,2023 March 31 2022
Sale of goods 63.60 420.11

2 Purchase of goods 6,013.32 4,001.14
3 Availing of services 87,53 119.60
4 Rendering of services 1.18 76.20
5 CSR Contribution 25.94 40.83
6 Dividend Paid 24.10 213.99
7 Remuneration & Short term benefits

Chairman and Managing Director 60.00
Chief Financial Officer 16.03 7.19
Company Secretary 505 5.38
General Manager 5,47

8 Sitting fees 0,35 0.25

'Post employment benefit comprising compensated absences IS not disclosed as tnese are determined for the Company as a whole.
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Balances with related parties are as follows

S.No Transactionsl Balances Enterprises in which Key Key Management Personnel and
Management Personnel and their their Relatives
Relatives have 5 gnificant influence

March 31 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 Trade Payables 5,8C 124,15
2 Remuneration payable 45,OC - 45,00 60,00

Material related party transactions are follows

S.No Nature of transaction Yearendecl Year ended
March 31 2023 March 31 2022

1 Sale of goods
Thiaqarejar Mills (P) Ltd, 63,60 256,54

2 Purchase of goods
Thlagarajar Mills (P) Ltd, 6,013,32 4,000,24
ThiagaraJarCollege of Engineering 0,90

3 Availing of services
Thiagarajar Mills (P) Ltd, 8,46 44,94
Pacific Cotton LLC 32,12 22,13
Murugan Security Services 36,70 31,86
Thiagarajar Rubbers Private Limited 3,04
Colour Yarns Private Limited 8,50 10,02

4 Rendering of services
Thiagarajar Mills (P) Ltd, 1.18 76,20

5 CSR Contribution paid
Kalaithanthai Karurnultu Thiagaraja Chettia: Memorial Charitable 25,94 40,83
Trust

6 Remuneration to Key Management Persornel
T Kannan 45,00 60,00
A,N Paramasivam 15.53 5,47
K.Deenadayalan 0,50 7,19
S Paramasivam 5,05 5,38

7 Dividend Paid
TKannan 212,61
K,Thiagarajan 1.38
Thiagarajar Mills P ltd 24,10

Material related party balances are follows

S.No Name of the related paiy As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022

1 Trade payables
Pacific Cotton LLC 5,80
Thiagarajar Mills (P) Limited 124,15

2 Remuneration Payable
Sri T Kannan 45,00 60,00
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52 Retirement benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make rnonthv contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees'
salary,The contributions,as specified under the law,are made to the ProvidEnt fund as well as EmployeeState InsuranceFund,

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of INR 60,81 lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2022 is INR 56,05 lakhs) represents contribution
payable to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plan.)

Defined benefit plans

(a) Gratuity
Gratuity is payable as per Paymentof GratuityAct, 1972. In terms of the sane, gratuity is computed by multiplying last drawn salary (basic salary
including dearnessAllowance if any) by completedyears of continuous servce with part thereof in excess of six monthsand again by 15126. The
Act provides for a vesting period of 5 years for withdrawal and reflrernett and a monetary ceiling on gratuity payable to an employee on
separation, as may be prescribed under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, from time to time. However, in cases where an enterprise has more
favourable terms in this regard, the same has been adopted.

These plans typically expose the Companyto actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate
determined by reference to the market yields on government bonds denominated in
Indian Rupees. If tile actual return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan
deficit.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be
partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debt investments.

Longevity risk The present value ~f the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the
best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their
emotovment.An increase in the life exoectancvof the plan participantswill increasethe

Salary risk The present value Jf the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the
future salaries ~iplan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
Iparticipantswill incrBasethe plan's liability.

Company has an independent Gratuity Trust. The liability of each year is valued as per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits)" by an independent
Actuary and the amount as per the actuarial valuation report is provided in the accountseach year.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount Rate 7.23% o.a. 7,37% o.a,
Rate of increase in compensationlevel 5.0)% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Attrition Rate 1.00% o.a, 1.00% o.a,
ExpectedRate of Return on PlanAssets 7.2.3%p.a. 7,37% o.a.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employmentmarket.
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Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these
defined benefit plans are as follows:

March 31, 2023
in INR Lakhs

March 31, 2022
in INR Lakhs

Amount recognised under Employee Benefits Expense in the Statement of profit and Loss:
Current service cost
Net interest expense
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts incllded in net interest expense)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss

11.09
9.36

(0.15)

11.12
8.76

(0.27)
20.30 19.61

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive lincome (OCI) for the Year
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising:
Actuarial (gains)/Iosses recognised during the period
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

(5.40) (5.64)
(5.40) (5.64)

14.90 13.97Total

i. Current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee Benefits Expense' in profit or loss.
ii. The remeasurement of the net defined benefit iability is included in other comprehensive income.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company's
obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

134.84 133.84
(1.60) (2.49)
133.24 131.35

133.24 131.35
133.24 131.35

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

Funded
Unfunded

The above provisions are reflected under 'Provision for employee benefits'
(Long -term provisions) [Refer note 23]

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year were as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gains)/Iosses
Benefits paid
ClOSingdefined benefit obligation

133.84 131.57
1109 11.12
9.36 8.76

(5.48) (5.91)
(13.97) (11.70)
134.84 133.84

2.49 5.19

0.15 0.27
13.00 9.00

(13.97) (11.70)
(0.07) (0.27)

1.60 2.49

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:
Opening fair value of plan assets
Interest Income
Expected return on plan assets (excluding amcunts included in net interest expense)
Contributions
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains/(Ioss)
Others
Closing fair value of plan assets

&& m;;;;;
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2023 '1; March 31, 2022
in INR Lakhs in INR Lakhs

Sensitivity analysis
A. Discount Rate + 50 BP 7.73% 7.87%

Defined Benefit Obligation [PVO] 129.38 128.26

Current Service Cost 10.55 10.41

B. Discount Rate - 50 BP 6.73% 6.87%

Defined Benefit Obligation [PVO] 140.70 139.86

Current Service Cost 11.92 11.85

C. Salary Escalation Rate + 50 BP 5.50% 5.50%

Defined Benefit Obligation [PVO] 140.86 140.03

Current Service Cost 11.94 11.85

D. Salary Escalation Rate - 50 BP 4.50% 4.50%

Defined Benefit Obligation [PVO] 129.19 128.06

Current Service Cost 10.53 10.39

(b) Compensated absences
As per the policy of the Company, compensated absences are not entitled to be carried forward to the subsequent financial year and lapse at the
end of the reporting period. Accordingly, no liability towards compensated absences are recognised in these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP

CharteredAccountants
(Firm Registration No 004915S/ S200036)

T. Kannan
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00040674

RM. Somasundsram
Director
DIN: 00071510

Chinnsamy Ganesan
Partner

Membership NO.027501

AN. Paramasivam
Chief Financial Officer

5. Paramasivam
Company Secretary

Place: Kappalur,Madurai
Date: May 3, 2023
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VTM LIMITED PROXY FORM
(CIN: L1711lTN1946PLC003270)
Regd. Office: Sulakarai, Virudhunagar - 626 003
Email: office@vtmill.com; Website: www.vtmill.com
Phone: (04562) 234800/234801

Form No.MGT-II

Name of the member(s)
Registered Address
E-mail Id

Folio / DP ID-Client ID No

I/We being the member(s) of shares of the above named Company hereby appoint:

(1) Name Address , .
Email Id Signature or failing him;

(2) Name Address , .
Email Id Signature ..

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 76th Annual General Meeting of the
Company, to be held on Monday, 3,d July, 2023 at 12.05 PM, at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar and at any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:-

RESOLUTIONS Optional*

Ordinary Business For Against

1. Adoption of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
2. To declare a dividend on the Equity shares.
3. Re-appointment of Smt.Uma Kannan as Director who retires by rotation.

Special Business

4. special resolution: to enter into contracts or agreementsfor transactionsof sale,
purchaseor supply of goods or materials with Mis. Thiagarejar Mills (P) Ltd.,
up to an estimatedtransaction value of not exceedingRupeesOne Hundred Crore on behalf
of the Company, for each of the Five (5) financial years commencing from I" April, 2024.

5. special resolution: Reappointment of Sri. T.N. Ramanathan, as Non Executive
Independent director for a further (second) term of 5 years commencing from 01.04.2024

6. ordinary resolution: Ratification U/S 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for ratification
of fee payable to Sri A.N.Raman Cost auditor.

Signed this Day of 2023

Signature of Shareholder ..

Signature of Proxy holder(s) ..

Note:
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly mmpleted and deposited at the Registered Office of the

Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 76th Annual General

Meeting.
3. It is optional to put a 'X' in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the

'For' or 'Against' column blank against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as
he/she thinks appropriate.

4. Pleasecomplete all details including details of member(s) in above box before submission.
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